UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Before the
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING
File No. 3-18960

In the Matter of
JOHN SHERMAN JUMPER

Respondent.

DECLARATION OF PETER J. DISKIN IN SUPPORT OF MOTION BY
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT FOR A FINDING THAT RESPONDENT IS
INDEFAULT AND FOR IMPOSITION OF REMEDIAL SANCTIONS

I, Peter J. Diskin, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, do hereby declare as
follows: |

1. I am over 21 years of age and am a citizen of the United States. I
have resided in Georgia from 1992 through the present. I am a licensed attorney
and have been a member of the State Bar of Georgia since 1995. I am also a

certified public accountant A(currently unregistered).



2. Tam Assist;mt Regional Director in the Atlanta Regional Office of the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”), where I have
been eémployed since 2000.

3. I submit this declaration in support of the Division’s Motion for a
Finding that Respondent John Sherman Jumper (“Jumper”™) is in Default and for
Imposition of Remedial Sanctions.

4. I have personal knowledge of the matters set forth in this declaration.

5. I oversaw the investigation that led to the filing of the district court

action entitled Securities and Exchange Commission v. John Sherman Jumper, et

al., Case No. 2:18-CV-02259 —TLP-tmp (W.D. Tenn.), and have knowledge of the
evidence adduced by the staff. During the investigation, witness Brett C. Blair
(“Blair”) gave sworn testimony on April 13,2017. A true and correct copy of
Blair’s testimony, and the relevant Exhibits thereto, are attached to this declaration
as Exhibit A.!

6.  In 2006, Jumper was hired to help sell Snow Shoe Refractories LLC

(“Snow Shoe”), a privately-held business located in central Pennsylvania that

‘

! Also in connection with the investigation, on February 21, 2017, Jumper appeared for
sworn testimony pursuant to subpoena. During his testimony, Jumper asserted his right against
self-incrimination under the Fifth Amendment in response to all substantive questions.
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makes high heat-resistant products. Jumper marketed the business to Blair, an
acquaintance residing in Sarasota, Florida. In February of 2007, Blair purchased
Snow Shoe. Jumper was not givén a job, any title, or any definite responsibilities
with respect to Snow Shoe.

7. Snow Shoe had a pension plan for its employees called the Snow Shoe
Refractories LLC Pension Plan for Hourly Employees (“Pension Plan”). At the
time, the Pension Plan assets totaled approximately $8,300,000.

8.  On April 27, 2007, Jumper forged Blair’s signature on a document
that caused the Pension Plan assets to be transferred. from their custodial bank to
broker-dealer Merrill Lynch.

9.  On January 8, 2008, Jumper signed another forged form as the “V.P.
of Finance” of Snow Shoe, and submitted it to Merrill Lynch. Jumper forged
similar forms again on October 26, 2012, March 20, 2014 and August 27, 2014.

10. Inearly 2015, a group of business associates of Jumper were in
discussions to acquire an entity called American Tubing Arkansas, LLC (“ATA”).

11. At a late stage of the negotiations, however, Jumper’s business

associates realized that they did not have sufficient capital to acquire ATA. When



Jumper became aware of the shortfall, he offered to provide the funds to complete
the acquisition.

12.  In March 2015, Jumper forged documents causing $3,000,000 of
Pension Plan funds to be transferred to his business associates. A true and correct
excerpt of the Pension Plan’s March 2015 brokerage statement from Merrill Lynch
showing the $3,000,000 transfer is attached to this declaration as Exhibit B.
Jumper himself received payments amounting to $540,000 from those funds.

13.  On November 20, 2015, Jumper misappropriated an additional
$2,000,000 from the Pension Plan.

14.  On that day, Jumper submitted a letter on Snow Shoe letterhead, along
with a phony board resolution containing the forged signature of Blair, to the
Pension Plan custodian authorizing the transfer of $2,000,000 in Pension Plan
funds to a trust controlled by Jumper. A true and correct excerpt of the Pension
Plan’s November 2015 brokerage statement from Merrill Lynch showing the
$2,000,000 transfer is attached to this declaration as Exhibit C.

15.  Jumper then transferred some of the $2,000,000 to his other

businesses or personal bank accounts, where he used it for personal expenses.



16.  On February 16, 2016, Blair was informed by an actuary to the
Pension Plan that $5,000,000 had been transferred out of the Plan by Jumper
between March and November 2015. Blair contacted Jumper to inquire about the
missing funds. Jumpér responded that the funds were invested with a wealth
management firm called American Holdings.

17. Two days later, Jumper again used forged documents to transfer an
additional $700,000 from the Pension Plan. A true and correct excerpt of the
Pension Plan’s February 2016 brokeragé statement from Merrill Lynch showing -

the $700,000 transfer is attached to this declaration as Exhibit D.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on August 2, 2019

e

Peter J. Diski
Assistant Regi Director
United States Securities and Exchange Commission




DISKIN DECLARATION
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION |
In the Matter of: )
AMERICAN INVESTMENTS FUND I, LLC ) FILE NO. A-03754-A

WITNESS: BRETT CAMERON BLAIR

PAGES: 1 through 93

PLACE: U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
950 E. Paces Ferry Road, Suite 900
Atlanta, Georgia 30326

DATE: Thursday, April 13, 2017

The above-entitled matter came on for

investigative interview pursuant to subpoena at 10:45 a.m.

DIVERSIFIED REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

(202) 467-9200
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American Investments Fund |, LLC 04/13/16 Brett C. Blair

Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES 1 PROCEEDINGS
2 On behalf of the Securities and Exchange Commission: 2 MR. MOGAN: We are on the record at 10:45 a.m. on
3 April 13th, 2017.
3 GRANT MOGAN, Attomey 4 Mr. Blair, can you raise your right hand, please?
4q PETER DISKIN, Attomey 5 Do you swear to tell the truth, the whole truth,
. . 6 and nothing but the truth?
5 U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 7 MR. BLAIR: | do.
6 950 E. Paces Ferry Road, Suite 300 8 MR. MOGAN: Thank you, sir.
7 Atlanta, Georgia 30326 ° Whereupon,
10 BRETT CAMERON BLAIR
8 (404)842-7693 11 appeared as a witness herein and, having been first duly
9 For the witness: 12 sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
10 W. ANDREW CLAYTON, JR., Attomeye 1 EXAMINATION
14 BY MR. MOGAN:
11 Icard Menill 15 Q Mr. Blair, please state your full name and spell
12 2033 Main Street, Suite 600 16 your name fof the record.
17 A Brett Cameron Blair, that's B-r-e-t-t C-a-m-e-r-o-
13 Sarasota, Florida 34237 18 n Bd-adir.
14 (941)366-6384 19 Q Thank you, sir.
15 20 Mr. Blair, my name is Grant Mogan and to my left
21 is Peter Diskin. We are both officers of the Commission for
22 the purposes of this proceeding.
23 This is an investigation by the United States
24 Securities and Exchange Commission in the matter of American
25 Investments Fund |, LLC, to determine whether there have been
Page 3 Page 5
1 CONTENTSe 1 violations of certain provisions of the federal securities
2 WITNESS EXAMINATION 2 laws. However, the facts developed in this investigation
3 BrettC. Blair 4 3 might constitute violations of other federal or state civil
4 4 orcriminal laws.
5 5 Prior to the opening of the record, you were i
6 provided with a copy of the Formal Order of Investigation in
6 : 7 this matter. It will be available for your examination
7 EXHIBITS: DESCRIPTION IDENTIFIED 8 during the course of this proceeding.
8 14 Subpoena 6 9 Mr. Blair, have you had an opportunity to review
9 15 Letter Jumper to Williams 75 10 the Formal Order?
10 16 11/2015 Letter Jumper to Williams 79 11 A | have.
11 17 11/20/2015 Letter re Pension Plan 80 12 MR. MOGAN: Thank you. ,
12 18  11/20/2015 Unanimous Written Consent 81 | 13 I'm going to show you what has been previously
13 19 2/2016 Letter re Pension Plan 82 14 marked as Exhibit 1 in this matter. If you'll take a look at
14 20  Unanimous Written Consent 83 15 that, sir.
15 16 (Exhibit Number 1 was
16 EXHIBITS PREVIOUSLY IDENTIFIED 17 previously marked.)
17 9 Form 1662 5 18 BY MR. MOGAN:
19 Q This is a copy of the Commission's Form 1662, our
18 3 Board of Diractors Resolution 57 20 Supplemental Information Form. If you could take a look at
19 4  Snow Shoe Defined Benefits Plan 60 21 thatand please let me know if you have any questions. |
20 § 2008 Named Fiduciaries & Auth. Signatures 63 | 5, (The witness reviews a document.)
21 6 2012 Named Fiduciaries & Auth. Signatures 64 | 23 Q Do you have any questions, sir?
22 7 2014 Named Fiduciaries & Auth. Signatures 70 | 24 A No.
23 8 9/12/2014 document w/fax cover 73 25 Q Okay, thank you.

2 (Pages 2 to 95)
Diversified Reporting Services
afR77RAG_RTEA_AAAA_32NR.NThIRafihridh



American Investments Fund |, LLC 04/13/16 Brett C. Blair

Page 6 Page 8}
1 Mr. Blair, are you represented by counsel today? 1 break, so there's no question hanging in the air while we're
2 A Yes. 2 ona break.
3 MR. MOGAN: Okay, would counse! please identify | 3 Is that okay with you as well?
4  himself? 4 A Yes.
5 MR. CLAYTON: Yes, Drew Clayton. 5 Q Great
6 MR. MOGAN: And your firm's name, sir? 6 Mr. Blair, just for the record, we did speak on
7 MR. CLAYTON: |It's Icard Merrill and that's in 7 the phone and Mr. Clayton was present as well for that call.
8 Sarasota, Florida. 8 And a lot of what we're going to discuss today is what we
9 MR. MOGAN: Great. Thank you. 9 discussed then. But I'd like to sort of go back to when you
10 I'm going to mark Exhibit 14. 10 acquired Snow Shoe Refractories. If you could just explain
11 (Exhibit Number 14 was 11 how that transaction came about. '
12 marked for identification.) 12 A Snow Shoe Refractories was acquired in 2007-2008.
13 MR. MOGAN: Thank you. 13 We acquired that shop because we had previously acquired
14 BY MR. MOGAN: 14 Mount Savage Refractories in 2005 and we deemed it to be a
15 Q This is a copy of the subpoena we issued to you, | 15 good fit. The first purchase, of Mount Savage, was a
16 Mr. Blair. Couldyou just take a look at that and let me 16 domestic firebrick shop and the Snow Shoe Refractories was an
17 know if you've got any questions. 17 industrial firebrick shop. So we thought that was a good
18 (The witness reviews a document.) 18 coverage of the market.
19 Q Do you have any questions on the subpoena, sir? | 19 Both of those purchases were conducted by Alluvion
20 A No, sir. 20 Securities and John Jumper and David Lensing were the
21 Q Is that the subpoena pursuant to which you're 21 principal officers of the company that accomplished the
22 testifyi.ng today? 22 acquisition of those two shops for me.
23 A Yes. 23 Q And how were those transactions presented to you,
24 MR. MOGAN: Thank you. 24 Mr. Blair?
25 As the exhibits go today, I'm going to be handing | 25 A John Jumper had come across those businesses and
Page 7 Page 9
1 you certain exhibits. If | could just ask that when we're 1 we were friends at the time and he suggested that they might
2 done with the document, that you just tum it over. 2 be agood business to get into because it was a relatively
3 THE WITNESS: Okay. . 3 simple shop and was doing really well, at least we thought so
4 ~ MR.MOGAN: To keep a running pile. There's not 4 on the books.
5 that many document, as you can see, but | want to keep some | S " Q And how do you know Mr. Jumper?
6 semblance of order. 6 A We've known each other since we were about 20
7 BY MR. MOGAN: 7 years old, from a church in Memphis.
8 Q Isthat okay wifh you? 8 Q Are you originally from Memphis?
9 A Yes. 9 A Yes.
10 Q Great. 10 Q Okay. And you met —was it in a divinity program
11 Mr. Blair, is there any reason why you can't 11 there or how specifically did you meet?
12 testify truthfully today? 12 A No, no. Just in a church youth group.
13 A No. 13 Q Youth group, okay.
14 Q Have you ever testified before in any proceeding? 14 And did you go to college with Mr. Jumper?
15 A | have not. 15 A No, | did not.
16 Q Okay, so let me go through some basic ground 16 Q Okay. And when you met Mr. Jumper, what did you
17 nrules. And so far, you're doing an excellent job. 17 think of him?
18 You want to make sure all of your answers are 18 A Back then?
19 audible, so no nodding of the head or rolling of the eyes, 19 Q Yes.
20 just speak whatever is on your mind, so the reporter can get 20 A |thought he was a reasonably upstanding guy and
21 an accurate transcript of what we discuss today. 21 we were casual friends in the youth group, we didn't know
22 We will take breaks every once in awhile just to 22 each other that well, but later when | came back to Memphis
23 stretch our legs. If you need a break, just let me know and 23 from college, we ended up being roommates, had an apartment H
24 | will accommodate you. | would just asl'< that if there's a 24 together.
25 25

pending question, you would answer it before we goon a

Q Okay. !

Diversified Reporting Services
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American Investments Fund |, LLC 04/13/16 Brett C. Blair

Page 10 ‘ Page 12}
1 A Sowe got to know each other a little better then. 1 A | had not.
2 Thatwas in 1990, '91. 2 Q Okay. So this was your first financial dealing
3 Q Okay. And did you have any business dealings with | 3 with him?
4 Mr. Jumper in those years? 4 A Yes.
5 A No. 5 Q Okay. Did you trust him at the time?
6 Q And what was your principal occupation in those 6 A |did.
7 years? 7 Q Andwhy is that?
8 A 1 was going through the process of ordinationin 8 A He seemed to know what he was doing and we had
9 the United Methodist Church. ' 9 been friends for a long time and roommates and | didn't have
10 Q And was Mr. Jumper also involved in the United 10 any reason not to trust him. .
11 Methodist Church? 11 Q How much money approximately did you invest in |
12 A No, he was not. 12 guess the first one, the Mount Savage Refractory; do you
13 Q What was he doing? 13 recall?
14 A | think he was working for Buncan Williams, an 14 A About $600,000.
15 investment firm in Memphis. Maybe that came alittle later. | 15 Q Okay. And that was your equity investment?
16 Atthattime, I'm not sure exactly what he was doing in 1990. | 16 A Yes,sir.
17 Q Okay. 17 Q Did you take on any debt?
18 A Alittle later, he was working for Duncan 18 A Yes.
19 Williams. 19 Q How much debt did you take on?
20 - Q Okay. And you both lived in Memphis at the time; |20 A About 10 mitlion.
21 isthatright? 21 Q Ten million, okay.
22 A Yes. 22 And was that from a bank?
23 Q And when did you leave Memphis? 23 A Yes.
24 A The United Methodist Church that | was finally 24 Q Which bank was that from, if you recall?
25 given an appointment was in '92 and | went to Edith, 25 A | believe that was a bond issuance, a Maryland
Page 11 Page 13
1 Tennessee, but | stayed mostly in the west Tennessee area| 1 State Bond. '
2 with the church. 2 Q Okay. So from the state?
3 Q And you cumently live in Sarasota; right? 3 A Yes.
4 A Correct. 4 Q Okay. And was that sort of a state inducement to
5 Q Sowhen did you move to Sarasota? 5 the purchase?
6 A Seven years ago. 6 A Uh-huh.
7 Q And what prompted that move? 7 Q As far as the Snow Shoe Refractories, which you |l
8 A My son's allergies and migraine headaches. 8 said happened in '07-'08, came after Mount Savage; is that ||
9 Q Okay. So amore agreeable climate? , 9 right? '
10 A Yes. 10 A Yes.
11 Q Okay. And what business are you involved in now? | 11 Q Do you recall what your investment in the Snow
12 A The firebrick business, refractories industry and 12 Shoe Refractory was?
13 alsoin the publishing industry. 13 A Couple hundred thousand.
14 Q And what do you publish, sir? 14 Q So less than Mount Savage?
15 A | own sermons.com which provides sermon and 15 A Yes.
16 worship prep resources for clergy all around the world. 16 Q And do you recall if there was debt on that
17 Q + And how much of your time do you spend on the 17 acquisition?
18 firebrick business versus the publishing business you 18 A Yes.
19 described? 19 Q How much debt was on that acquisition?
20 A Probably about 15 hours a week to both. 20 A Eight million.
21 Q Fifteen hours a week to both? 21 Q And was this again a state bond?
22 A Each, 15 hours each. 22 A No, it was — the bank was First Capital.
23 Q So, at the time that Mr. Jumper presented these 23 Q And that was a loan to who?
24 businesses to you, did you have any financial dealings with | 24 A Tome.
25 Mr. Jumper? 25 Q Toyou, okay. Is that loan — how is that loan

4 (Pages 10 to 13)
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American Investments Fund |, LLC 04/13/16 Brett C. Blair

Page 14 Page 16 E

1 performing? 1 A Mount Savage is domestic and Snow Shoe is the ;
2 A Both the loans have been restructured. 2 industrial. ]
3 Q Uh-huh. 3 Q Gotit. !
L] A And they were restructured in 2012 by the Bank of 4 Okay, so going back to Mr. Jumper's involvement in !
5 Montgomery. 5 the transactions, what was his compensation on the Mount i
6 Q Montgomery, Alabama? 6 Savage transaction? !
7 A Yes. 7 A Ibelieve we paid him $250,000. i
8 Q Okay. And how was it restructured? What are the 8 Q Thatwas in cash? ;
9 terms of the loan, if you know? 9 A Yes. !
10 A | believe they are 20-year loans. 10 Q Did he have any equity in the Mount Savage !
11 Q On both refractories? 11 brickyard? i
12 A Yes. 12 A No !
13 Q And what is the interest rate; do you know that? 13 Q Okay. gi
14 A It's an adjustable. 14 A Hedid not. !
15 Q Adjustable. Based on LIBOR or — 15 Q What about the Snow Shoe transaction? i
16 ~ A Ithink so, yes. 16 A | believe his pay was about the same. i
17 Q Are those loans currently performing? 17 Q Two fiftyish? {
18 A Yes. 18 A Right. And he did not have any equity in it as
19 Q So you're making payments on those{oans? 19 well ;
20 A Yes, never been late. 20 Q Okay. Did he ever ask for equity in either '
21 Q Never been late, there's never been a default? 21 company? |
22 A " No. 22 A Yes, we had talked about potentially him coming in l
23 Q How has the Mount Savage Refractory performed as | 23 later and having some equity in the Mount Savage company but f
24 anédnvestmentdorgrou? | 24 weneverdiscussed that with the Snow Shoe. I didn'twantto |
25 A The Mount Savage had done really well up to 2012. | 25 get involved again. ll
Page 15 Page 17 l

1 Q Okay. 1 Q And why is that? f
2 A And we had strong net profits at the end of the 2 A | wanted to keep the entitles clean and not be f
3 year, 2011, 2012. And then the market finally caught up with 3 entangled down the road with him. E
4 us. The industry took a downtum, China supplies were kind 4 Q  Just to be clear, you're the sole owner of both of l
5 of gutting the industry and we suffered as a result. And 5 those; right? Snow Shoe and Mount Savage. H
6 that — more specifically, the steel industry was suffering 6 A I'm the managing member and | own about 82 E
7 because of China and we supply resources to the steel 7 percent. My brother owns a small percentage also. f
8 industry. The housing market took a dive, that caused Mount | 8 Q Okay. And was he an equity investor or did you {
9 Savage to under-perform since 2013. 9 give hima small — §
10 Q And has it recovered at all in let's say the last 10 A Sweat equity. He went up there to actually run L
11 yearortwo? 11 the places and he's still there today. !
12 A The last six months have been a little better, we 12 Q Okay. !
13 were barely keeping our head above water, but the last six 13 MR. DISKIN: Can | ask'a question, Mr. Blair? |
14 months have been a bit better. 14 How — and | don't think you talked about this - l
15 Q And I'll ask the same question about the Snow 15 how did it come about that Mr. Jumper was — | assume he E
16 Shoe, is it the same type of trajectory? 16 proposed to you to take on Mount Savage. Can you just give f
17 A Same, yes. 17 us alittte bit of overview? You had a relationship with Mr. i
18 Q Okay. Because they're in the same business; 18 Jumper, had you talked about investments prior to that or was {
19 right? They're literally two different brickyards doing the 19 it something he just called you out of the blue? Can you ?
20 same thing; right? 20 give us a little color on that kind of background? ¢
21 A Well, they're both firebricks, but one is to the 21 THE WITNESS: It's a good question and it's hard !
22 domestic market for residential fireplaces, and the otherone | 22 for me to remember exactly how those conversations got {
23 s to the industrial sector for kilns and fumaces and 23 started, but John and | were starting to talk to one another :
24 medical incinerators, et cetera. 24 because | had come back to Memphis and | had gone up and gone {
25 Q And which is which, I'm sorry. 25 to his brokerage firm and saw what he did. And so we started i

5 (Pages 14 to 17)
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American Investments Fund |, LLC 04/13/16 Brett C. Blair

Page 18 Page 20
1 talking a bit. We went to lunch and he started talking about 1 compensation for the Mount Savage deal?
2 businesses that occasionally come across his desk that are up 2 A Yes, he got the 250 from me, but then he created
"3 forsale. Because | think he was, in addition to the bond 3 this loan situation without my knowing it, for a little extra
4 business, he was also doing these kind of acquisitions, 4 to be left on top that the Rosts would pay to him.
5 having | think two entities that he was involved with, his 5 Q Oh, so he got 250 from you and also about 250 from
6 Alluvion Securities and then Alluvion Investments. 6 the Rosts.
7 And so maybe that enticed me a little bit and we 7 A Yes.
8 started talking, because | — you know, | was doing_pretty 8 Q Okay, understood.
9 well with my publishing entity and | thought it'd be good to 9 MR. DISKIN: And how did you find that out?
10 have another investment. So then eventually he brought up the | 10 THE WITNESS: | think my brother Randy found that
11 brickyard. And | don't know exactly how that was brought up. 11 outand he called me. We were up at Mount Savage at the time,
12 Butthat's the best that | can recall. 12 | called John and was pretty upset, because it was never
13 BY MR. MOGAN: 13 revealed to me that that was being done.
14 Q Who were the existing owners of the brickyards at 14 MR. DISKIN: And when was that, what point in
15 thetimeyouacquired them; do you remember that? 15 time, if you recall?
16 A The Rost, R-o-s-t, family owned Mount Savage and 16 THE WITNESS: 2005, yeah. It was immediately
17 they had sole ownership with no debt. 17 after the purchase that | leamed that that had happened.
18 Q Uh-huh. 18 BY MR. MOGAN:
19 A So they're the ones that sold it to us. And then 19 Q. And then given that, you still went ahead on the
20 Snow Shoe was owned by Premier Industries, a subsidiary of 20 second deal with him?
21 France Company — Vesuvius, Vesuvius France owned Premier | 21 A Yes, but | watched what happened to the loan.
22 Industries, which was the name of the Snow Shoe then. Before | 22 Q Okay. And did he get more money from Snow Shoe?
23 that, itwas J.H. France. And the guy, J.H. France, was 23 A No.
24 still around when | purchased it and lived in the area, but 24 Q Okay.
25 he had sold it to Premier. 25 A Just the money that | paid him.
Page 19 Page 21
1 Q Okay. Soyou mentioned Mr. Jumper got payments of | 1 Q Just the 250 on Snow Shoe.
2 Dboth of those — at the closings of both of those deals. 2 A Yes.
3 That's right? 3 Q Did you reprimand Mr. Jumper for his behavior in
4 A Uh-huh. 4 the Mount Savage deal?
5 Q Did he propose the amount to you or did you 5 A Yes, | had a phone call and | was pretty angry and
6 propose the amount to him? 6 we talked about it and he said he would make up forit. |
7 A ldon'trecall. 7 didn't know what that meant then and | still don't know what
8 Q Do you think he was satisfied with the amount he 8 it means today, but -
9 got? 9 Q Okay. Did Mr. Jumper ever ask for any employment |}
10 A No. 10 position with either Mount Savage or Snow Shoe?
11 Q Whyis that? 11 A No.
12 A He amanged with the Rosts — and | leamed this 12 Q Do you know what Mr. Jumper's financial situation
13 after the transaction — for the loan, which | think was $9 13 was back during the time of those acquisitions?
14 million. | can'trecallwhat the loan was. 14 A |1 don't and | never have known his financial
15 .Q This was for Mount Savage; right? 15 position.
16 A Yes, somy, for Mount Savage. 16 Q Does he live a lavish lifestyle?
17 So, he arranged for the loan to be $9,250,000 and 17 A | don't think so.
18 so | was saddled with that loan, and I didn't Rnow until 18 Q Does he have a family inheritance that he
19 after the transaction that the $250,000 was being given to 19 inherited or anything like that?
20 theRosts to pay John. 20 A No, his mother is still alive.
21 Q So he got his 250 from the Rost family. 21 Q Do you know how much money he made from his
22 A Yes. Which really was the loan debt. 22 Alluvion businesses?
23 Q Soit was unbeknownst to you. 23 A | have no clue.
24 A Yes. 24 Q So there's no sign of any conspicuous consumption
25 Q So you -- were you planning on giving him any 25 as far as you're concemed.
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American Investments Fund |, LLC 04/13/16 Brett C. Blair

Page 22 Page 24
1 A No. 1 Q Right, just an assumption based on the amount of
2 Q Okay. Why do you think Mr. Jumper proposed these 2 money.
3 acquisitions to you, Mr. Blair? | know it's hard to get 3 A Right.
4 inside someone's head, but tell me what you think. 4q Q Did your brother know before February 2016 about
S A Idon't know. 5 the missing money?
6 Q Is it because you were — 6 A No.
7 A Maybe | showed an interest and so it just 7 Q You said your brother — so your brother lives in
8 snowballed from there. 8 Pennsylvania?
9 Q Showed an interest in just acquiring businesses or 9 A In Frostburg, Maryland.
10 brickyards specifically? 10 Q Okay. But he manages both of the brickyards.
11 A Acquiring businesses and acquiring one that would 11 A Uh-huh.
12 be lucrative. 12 Q Do you compensate him for that?
13 Q Okay. Did he ever ask to manage any of your money? | 13 A Yes.
14 A No. 14 Q Okay. Is he sort of your eyes on the ground?
15 Q Did he ever manage any of your money? 15 A Yes.
16 A No. 16 Q Okay. | take it you have a good relationship with
17 Q Did he ever give you advice on how to invest your 17 your brother?
18 money, besides these two acquisitions obviously? 18 A Absolutely.
19 A No, not really. 19 Q Okay. Did you brother ever encounter Mr. Jumper
20 Q Do you know any of Mr. Jumper’s clients at 20 at either brickyard, physically?
21 Alluvion? 21 A Yes.
22 A 1donot. 22 Q When were those encounters?
23 Q Do you know if he has any clients? 23 A 2005 and in 2008, both times we acquired the
24 A ldonot. 24 businesses.
‘125 Q When is the last time you spoke to him? 25 Q That was when Mr. Jumper visited the brickyards?
Page 23 Page 25}
1 A Probably February 2016. 1 A Hold on. I'm remembering when John visited.
2 Q February 2016. And what was the substance of that 2 Randy was not there in 2005 because we were just purchasing.
3 conversation? 3 But Randy has encountered John there on a couple of
4 A Where the monies were that were taken from the 4 occasions, | think — at the Snow Shoe plantin 2007 and
5 pension plan. 5 2008.
6 Q The Snow Shoe pension plan. 6 Q Anything since then?
7 A Yes. 7 A We had a meeting in October of 2014 - no, no,
8 Q And how did you discover that monies were missing 8 2015. We had a meeting with John Jumper at the Snow Shoe
9 from the Snow Shoe pension plan? 9 plant with the bank to go over the loans and the state of the
10 A The actuarial firm that has duty to oversee those 10 businesses because we were just keeping our head above water
11 monies, Conrad Siegel. 11 financially there. And so we metin 2015, October 2015 —
12 Q Uh-huh. 12 Randy and me and John and the bank president met at Snow Shoe
13 A The lady there, Abigail, emailed Randy just 13 Refractories to talk about the state of the businesses.
14 letting him know that she had not yet found out from John 14 " And John was, at that time, trying to restructure
15 . Jumper the details of where the $5 million had been sent and 15 the loans —no, no, that's 2012. At that time, October
16 that she was still, you know, seeking to find out. And that 16 2015, John Jumper came up there because the bank wanted to
17 was the first we had heard and she was not aware that we were | 17 talk to us and | was asking John to sell the businesses for
18 unaware of the transactions. 18 me. And so he came to be present to speak to that matter with
19 Q Okay. So she thought you had known about it. 19 the bank.
20 A Yeah. 20 Q And why was he included in that discussion, Mr.
21 Q And why did she think that? 21 Blair — Mr. Jumper?
22 A Ithink it was just an assumption on her pari that 22 A Because | had tasked him with trying to sell the
23 we would know whether $5 million was taken from the pension | 23 businesses.
24 plan ornot. | don't think she had any like active 24 Q  And why did you task him with that as opposed to
25 information that we knew. 25 someone else?
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Page 26 Page 28 |
1 A It's a case of the devil you do know. He was 1 Q Because | asked about other instances of
2 intimately familiar with the businesses, he got me in it, and 2 dishonesty. It sounds like you were looking back from the
3 lasked him to get me out. 3 Dbeginning of the acquisition of Mount Savage, there was that
4 Q And did he undertake that willingly? 4 original sin of the 250 that he saddled you with on the loan
S A Yes. 5 with the Rost family that ended up being paid to him.
6 Q You mentioned an instance of dishonesty with 6 A Uh-huh.
7 respect to the loan on the Mount Savage transaction. Do you 7 Q In addition to you paying 250 out of your own
8 recall that testimony? 8 pocket, so it amounted to 500, just for summarizing.
9 A Yes. 9 And then in 2012, in connection with the
10 Q In between that instance of dishonesty and the 10 restructuring of the debt, you discovered there were some
11 October 2015 meeting, were there other instances of 11 false expenses; is that right?
12 dishonesty with respect to Mr. Jumper? 12 A Right.
13 A In-yes, in 2012 - this is what | was 13- Q Did you have a discussion with Mr. Jumper about
14 conflating earlier. 14 those false expenses?
15 Q Yeah, yeah. 15 A |did.
16 A In 2012, John restructured the loans for me. 16 Q Whnatwas that conversation?
17 Q The loans on Mount Savage and Snow Shoe? 17 A He argued that they were legitimate and that they
18 A On both refractories. And when he did, he 18 were necessary expenses.
19 developed a relationship working pretty closely with my CEO, 19 Q Expenses for what? Do you have any idea what they
20 who was Jeff Pouge. | believe Pouge's name is spelled P-o-u- | 20 were for, purportedly?
21 g-e. And- 21 A There was one situation where he asked, I think it
22 Q I'msorry, Pouge was CEO of which brickyard? 22 was an $8500 check and it was for some expenses, | don't
23 A Of both. 23 remember what it was. But then he called Jeff and said he
24 Q Both, okay. 24 lost the check and could he write him another check. He
25 A But he worked at Snow Shoe. 25 wrote him another check and Jeff of course told him to tear
Page 27 Page 29
1 Q Understood. ) 1 up the other one if you find it. He ended up cashing both
2 A And it's difficult for me to get behind the 2 checks.
3 curtain on this and understand the relationship that he 3 Q Okay.
4 developed with Jeff Pouge, but | think he gained Jeff Pouge's 4 MR. DISKIN: He being Mr. Jumper.
5 confidence and Jeff Pouge was kind of an odd fellow and he 5 THE WITNESS: Mr. Jumper. Sorry.
6 never really communicated with Randy and me very effectively | 6 MR. DISKIN: And what was originally the 8500 for;
7 and that relationship deteriorated from that point on until | 7 doyou recall?
8 fired him, as a result of there being checks written that | 8 THE WITNESS: | believe it was for the appraisal
9 think were for things that were false, expenses that were 9 of the businesses, or expenses in getting that appraisal
10 false. Maybe half of it was legitimate but the other half | 10 accomplished. That's a guess, it's been a long time since -
11 think was false and it amounted to about $200,000 that | 11 [I've looked at those documents.
12 think was falsely acquired by John Jumper through Jeff Pouge. { 12 And then there was this dubious hedge fund that
13 Q Okay, so $200,000 in you're saying sort of phony 13 John created that | think had $45,000 routed into it and |
14 expenses from the brickyards paid to Mr. Jumper is that 14 confronted him about the hedge fund and what it was for and
15 right? 15 he never would tell me. | would keep asking and he just
16 A Right. 16 never told me. And he put it off and put it off and finally,
17 Q And you believe that Mr. Pouge collaborated with 17 | walked away. The brickyards were doing very well at the
18 Mr. Jumper on those —- 18 time. The restructuring was going to end up bringing us
19 A Yes. 19 aboutsix or seven hundred thousand dollars a yearin
20 Q Okay. 20 savings, which was pretty important then. And so | walked
21 A But by the time those were being discovered, we 21 away, wrote it off and just decided to break my relationship
22 were closing on the loan and so there was no way to get off 22  with him.
23 thathorse. 23 And | think for the next several years, until
24 Q Thisis back in 2012. 24 2015, | didn't have one conversation with him.
25 A Yes. 25

MR. DISKIN: I'm sorry, | don't mean to jump in.

8 (Pages 26 to 29)
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Page 30 Page 32
1 What was the nature of the 45,000 that went into the hedge 1 interested and he said he might. And | said well, see what
2 fund? Was there a purported business purpose because it was 2 you can do.
3 coming from one of the refractories; right? 3 Q So how did those discussions end up going in 2015?
1 THE WITNESS: Right, and that's what | was trying 4q A There weren't too many. | think the conversation
5 todiscover, you know, you're using this hedge fund to invest 5 about that occurred for about a month, about four or five
6 in what, and he never would tell me what he was in the hedge 6 weeks. And he came up — the bank at the same time just
7 fund for. 7 happened to be coming down to kind of do a review after so
8 MR. DISKIN: Why was the money coming from a 8 many years of the businesses. And we knew that we were kind
9 refractory to Mr. Jumper's hedge fund? What was the purpose, 9 of fighting to keep ourselves afloat because of the steel
10 was it an investment purportedly, or was it — you know, what 10 industry crashing, the bank president did. So he was coming
11 was the purported purpose of why the money was there? 11 up, | wanted to assure the bank that things were under
12 THE WITNESS: What was he saying it was for? 12 control, and | thought the way to do that was to of course
13 MR. DISKIN: Right. How did he get money - how 13 present our books to them and show them, hey, you know, we've
14 did he get the 45,000? Did he say — 14 not missed a single note, we've paid on time every time, and v
15 THEWITNESS: Speaking to Jeff Pouge. How did he 15 I'm -- put a comma splice here -- John had a good
16 getit from Jeff Pouge. 16 relationship also with Steven, the bank president, and | felt
17 MR. DISKIN: Correct. 17 that if — because he had done other deals with that bank.
18 THE WITNESS: Okay. The accountant, the CFO or 18 And | felt if John was present there and could kind of speak
19 the accountant — we didn't really use titles there — | 19 about the selling of the businesses and that we're going to
20 don't know what he told Jeff Pouge but — and | suspected 20 try and get out from under this and move on, | felt like that
21 that Jeff Pouge was playing kind of loose with this check 21 would also give the bank some assurance, because he and John {
22 writing as well, because we were kind of falling out of 22 had a good relationship.
23 sorts, Jeff and | and my accountant. And | think that 23 Q Sodid you have any offers put in on the
24 because Jeff and John Jumper spoke kind of the same language | 24 brickyards?
25 and they developed a relationship, there was -- | did find 25 A No.
Page 31 Page 33}
1 one email way down the road where | saw a conversation 1 Q ‘When that sale process ended, did you and Mr.
2 between John and Jeff where John was undermining my authority § 2 Jumper stay in touch?
3 atthe brickyards, and putting me down to Jeff. 3 A We did, but there wasn't much talk because he was
q So there was a little bit of grooniing going on 4 putting off the possibility of selling the companies. About
5 that John was doing in order to gain the confidence of Jeff. 5 five weeks into my first conversation with John, he mentioned
6 Again, it's hard to get behind the curtain and know exactly 6 that he might have a suitor in Arkansas. And | don't know if
7 what they were doing and how all that happened. 7 itwasin that conversation or a subsequent conversation that
8 | eventually just had to fire Jeff because he 8 he finally told us that it was a company called American
9 essentially quit talking to Randy and me and wouldn't tell us 9 Tubing and that they had an interest. They were an air
10 whatwas going on at the business. 10 conditioning fitting company and | wondered why they would
11 BY MR. MOGAN: 11 have aninterest. And he made something up about expanding
12 Q So Mr. Jumper, in 2012 in connection with the 12 into other industries.
13 restructuring, it sounds like you saw some malfeasance there 13 But at that time, the purchase of American Tubing
14 orit sounds like you were doing the restructuring and you 14 had already occurred and had occurred back in March of 2015, H
15 letit go forward. Then you said you feil out with him and 15 andso here we were about nine months later — seven or eight
16 didn't speak to him. Butthen things come back again in ‘15 16 monthslater — and he's presenting it to me as this company
17 inconnection with the sale. | don't want to restate your 17 that he knows about in Arkansas, that they might be
18 testimony, but you said something to the effect of "I needed 18 interested in acquiring the brickyards.
19 him to get me out." You wanted to get out in 2015; right? 19 Q And what did you think of that?
20 A Yes, that's commect. And he accidentally called 20 A | thought great. We looked them up, saw that they
21 me inthe fall of 2015 and | saw the call on my phone, | 21 were - you know, looked like they were a big business and |
22 didn'tgetit. And so | called him back and | think we just 22 thought great, let's go with it.
23 struck up a conversation then and | had no one else to tum 23 And that conversation wenton, | think, once every
24 to. | wanted to get out of the business, | no longer wanted 24 two weeks we might have talked, once every three weeks,
25 tobein them and | felt that he had clients that might be 25 because there didn't seem to be much steam building for this.
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Page 34 Page 36
1 And he said something about the company and its liquidity and | 1 A The main reason that we stayed close is that his
2 they had some kind of issue and they werent goingtobe able | 2 daughter ended up working for me and did work for me up until
3 toget the liquidity that they thought -- do you recall this 3 ayear ago, from then until a year ago. And so, we've always
4 atall, Drew? 4 kind of been in touch with one another.
5 I'd have to look at my notes there, but that went 5 Q And why did she stop working for you?
6 on for a few weeks and then finally in February, we found out 6 A She had a teaching degree and her daughters were
7 about the withdrawals from the pension plan. 7 finally going to a local school, and she was going to take on
8 Q Uh-huh. 8 an assistant teacher’s position so that she could be with her
9 A Andittook us | don't know how long, months to 9 daughters, and be with them before, during and after school.
10 finally figure out that American Tubing had been bought back 10 And she'ddone 15 years with me, she'd kind of run her
11 inMarch of 2015 with the pension funds. 11 course.
12 Q Sodo you think that the proposed acquisition of 12 Q Did Mr. Porterfield have any involvement with the
13 Snow Shoe by American Tubing was a real - 13 brickyards you've discussed today?
14 A Itwasaruse. 14 A He's a 12 percent owner of both Mount Savage and
15 Q Youthink it was a ruse, okay. 15 Snow Shoe and he put some money, initial monies, into their
16 A Itwas a ruse. 16 acquisition and has since been paid back his initial
17 Q To keep you interested in selling or to distract 17 investment and earned some profits.
18 you? Whatdo you think? 18 Q Who paid him back?
19 A Todistract me. 19 A The companies did.
20 Q Okay. 20 Q Sohe's no longer an owner?
21 MR. CLAYTON: Could we go off the record just a 21 A Hesds.
22 second? 22 Q Oh, okay. Buthe's been eaming some profit on
23 MR. MOGAN: Sure. Off the record? 23 his -
24 MR. CLAYTON: Yeah. 24 A Yes.
25 MR. MOGAN: Okay, we're off the record at 11:28 2% Q Okay. How much money did he put into the
Page 35 Page 37
1 am. on April 13th. 1 refractories?
2 (A short recess was taken.) 2 A Fifty thousand.
3 MR. MOGAN: We are back on the record at 11:29 3 Q For each or both, total?
4 a.m. on April 13th. 4q A ] think total. .
5 BY MR. MOGAN: 5 Q Okay. Do you know why he made this investment? |
6 Q Sowe were discussing the potential sale of the 6 A We were friends and he wanted a piece of the
7 brickyard and it sounds like you ended up not selling them. 7 action.
8 And you had testified earlier you currently own them; 8 Q Is he a wealthy man?
9 correct? 9 A No.
10 A Correct. 10 Q So do you know why he would put $50,000 into
11 Q To your knowledge, - strike that. Tell me who 11 brickyards?
12 Brent Porterfield is. 12 A He thought it would be profitable.
13 A |1 met Brent Porterfield in Murray, Kentucky 13 -Q Okay. Does he know Mr. Jumper?
14 because we were both serving as United Methodist clergy in| 14 A Hedoes. He did not know him until he met John
15 the Memphis Conference of the United Methodist Church. 15 through me.
16 Q What year was this? 16 Q He met John through you.
17 A Iwand to say 1999. 17 A Yes. .
18 Q Okay. And what was Mr. Porterfield, he was 18 Q Okay, understood. And Mr. Porterfield lives in
19 serving in the clergy there as well? 19 Memphis; correct?
20 A Yes. 20 A | think so:
21 Q And did you stay in touch with Mr. Porterfield? 21 Q You're not currently in touch with Mr.
22 A Afterwards? 22 Porterfield?
23 Q Yes. 23 A No.
24 A Yes. 24 Q Whendid you lose touch with Mr. Porterfield?
25 Q And what was your — go ahead. 25 A We quit talking in February of 2016.
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Page 38 Page 40
1 Q And s that because of the events that we 1 Q Soit sounds like Mr. Porterfield — was Mr.
2 discussed - 2 Porterfield on site at the brickyards from time to time?
3 A Yes. 3 A I'd say allin all, he's been up there about four
4 Q - the pension plan withdrawals? 4 times.
5 A Yes. S Q You mentioned that Mr. Jumper had gone to the
6 Q Did Mr. Porterfield know about the pension plan 6 brickyards as well; right?
7  withdrawals? 7 A Yes.
8 A We're still trying to get at that. it appeared in 8 Q Do you know if Mr. Jumper had gone to the
9 February of 2016 that he did know, because of conversations 9 brickyards on any kind of regular basis?
10 that he'd had with my brother Randy Swafford. He had a 10 A No, but he had been up there prior to my acquiring
11 conversation with Randy where - and this is vague too ~ 11 the businesses and before | knew about them. | think he had
12 where he said he knew about the funds thatwere taken, that 12 already been up there and met the owners and was speaking to
13 he authorized John to sign his signature but then we've had 13 them about a possible sale.
14 anotherconversation with him, Drew has, where John was 14 Q And you mentioned Mr. Pouge | believe, the former
15 surprised by his signature being forged on subsequentt 15 CEO. Did Mr. Jumper befriend any other employees at Snow
16 documenis that took out — 16 Shoe?
17 Q Sorry, you mean Brent? 17 A Yes, he attempted to.
18 A Sorry, sorry. 18 Q What employees are those?
19 Q Brentwas surprised. 19 A Ron Park, who was the assistant accountant, and
20 A Brent was surprised, sorry — Brent was surprised 20 then the senior accountant.
21 atthe forging of his signature and the withdrawal of the 21 Q And when you say "attempted to,” can you explain
22 $700,000 which was the third withdrawal. So, it's been kind 22 that?
23 of hard to pin down exactly what John knew and what he didn't } 23 A 1 think that he tried to get in the good graces of
24 -—sorry — ' 24 Ron Park the same way he had with Jeff Pouge, but Ron Park
25 Q Brent 25 was a very honest person and meticulous to a fault | guess.
Page 39 Page 41
1 A — what Brent knew and what he didn't know. 1 And he wouldn't write a check that | didn't authorize. Ron
2 Q Hard to pin down, is what you're saying. 2 Park - I had complete confidence in Ron Park and he in me.
3 A Yes. 3 Q Do you think Mr. Jumper thought he could take
4q Q Okay. But your brother had told you at one point 4 money from the brickyards without you noticing it?
5 that Mr. Porterfield knew about the withdrawals. 5 A Yes.
6 A Knew about the withdrawals and Brent said to my 6 Q Whny do you think he thought that?
7 brother that with some of those monies that were taken, that 7 A Since 2008 when we acquired Snow Shoe, he had been
8 John had crossed the line. 8 managing the Snow Shoe Refractories' pension fund and | was
9 Q Brent had said that? 9 completely unaware of the powers that he had with regard to
10 A Yes, that John had crossed the line. Then Brent 10 thatfund. Randy and | were under the impression that the
11 indicated that he had some culpability too. 1forget exactly 11 pension fund at Snow Shoe was a lot like the pension fund at
12 how he expressed that, but he expressed — do you remember | 12 Mount Savage, that it was untouchable, that there was no way
13 hisexact words? ‘ 13 monies could be taken out of the fund. And that's true at
14 Q Do you remember anything about what he said about | 14 Mount Savage, I've subsequently leamed. You can't draw any
15 culpability? 15 maney out of it. But you can at Snow Shoe because at Snow
16 A No. 16 Shoe we actually own that pension fund where at Mount Savage,
17 Q Okay. 17 it's kind of a group setting, there are several corporations
18 A But we have it written down in our time line that 18 that pool.
19 we presentedto you. 19 So had no idea of the withdrawal capabilities of
20 Q Okay. Whattime line that you presented to me? 20 that fund until — I'm sy, what was the original question?
21 MR. CLAYTON: We prepared a time line. Did we not | 21 Q The original question was did Mr. Jumper believe
22 senditto you? 22 he could take money from the Snow Shoe brickyard without you
23 MR. MOGAN: | don't believe so. You can get us a 23 noticing it.
24 copy, you can do it later, that's fine. 24 A Without my noticing.
25 BY MR. MOGAN: 25 Q Yeah.
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Q Did you say anything like that? I'm trying to get

Page 42 Page 44
1 A Soldon't know if John was managing those funds | 1 at-- you know what I'm trying to get at.
2 just because he felt like he should or it was just something | 2 A Yes. {
3 he was saddled with, or he was — he had these plans all 3 Q I'mtrying to get at is there any way that Mr. i
4 along. 4 Jumper could think that he had that authority? | know it's ;
5 Q When you say funds, you're talking about the 5 hard for you to speak to someone else's brain. I'm not i
6 pension funds. 6 tryingto— ;
7 A Yes. 7 A 1 guess there is a way that he thought that, but !
8 Q And just to be clear, did you authorize him as the 8 there is no way that he was authorized to falsify my i
9 fiduciary for the pension plan? 9 signature and to withdraw the funds from the pension plan. i
10 A 1did not. 10 As to getting in his brain and him thinking, you i
11 Q Do you know if anyone else did? 11 know, he was tasked with that; maybe. |
12 A No, | don't know that anyone else did. 12 Q Nowdow — ‘
13 Q Did anyone else have the authority to? 13 A To be fair. :
14 A No. 14 Q So areyou a financially savvy person? ’r
15 Q Okay. So Mr. Jumper anointed himself; is that 15 A Ithink so. !
16 fair? : 16 Q Do you manage your own funds? }
17 A Yes. In 2008, he put together the paperwork to 17 A Yes. :
18 transfer the funds from Merrill Lynch to the Bank of 18 Q Okay. Is there any way that Mr. Jumper thought ,
19 Montgomery — I'm somry, to the Bank of America. 19 something to the effect of "well, Mr. Blair is busy with his i
20 Q Isn'tit the reverse? 20 publishing business and managing his own finances, he owns |
21 A It eventually came back. 21 the brickyards as a passive investment, I'm gaing to be the !
22 Q | think it's Bank of America to Merrill Lynch; 22 eyes and ears on the ground here.” {
23 right? 23 A No. !
24 MR. CLAYTON: That's right. 24 Q You never gave him that authority. !
25 A That's right. And then Bank of America 25 A No. E
Page 43 Page 45
le consolidated — 1 Q Because Mr. Swafford was your eyes and ears on the
2 Q Itwas circular. 2 ground; right? '
3 A Yes. 3 A That's right. i
4 Q Bank of America went to Merrill, Bank of America 4 Q Okay. Wnhat was Mr. Swafford's relationship with 5
5 then bought Merrill, so it ends up being - 5 Mr. Jumper? l
6 A Soittransferred from BoA to Merrill Lynch. 6 A Antagonistic from the beginning. !
7 Q Comect. 7 Q Why? [
8 A Okay. 8 A Randy never liked him. i
9 Q But he did that without you knowing it; is that 9 Q Going back again to exploring Mr. Jumper's brain, i
10 fair? 10 you said that he didn't have the authority to forge your i
11 A Yes, and he drew up like a board meeting thattook | 11 signature. You never gave him that authority; right? i
12 place and falsified those records to put himself in that 12 A No. {
13 position. ’ 13 Q Didyou ever sit in a meeting with Mr. Jumper and i
14 Q Wediscussed the forgeries on the phone call we 14 Mr. Porterfield where you discussed the brickyards, in F
15 had and I'm going -- we'll go through some of them a little 15 Memphis; do you recall a meeting in Memphis that the three of }
16 bit later, but is there any way, Mr. Blair, that Mr. Jumper 16 you satin? Orany meetings to those effects — i
17 thoughtin his brain that he had the authority to forge your 17 A | think there were some informal conversations i
18 signature? 18 thatwehad. You know, | don't think it was a convened j[
19 A No. 19 meeting of any kind, but informal conversation about the ]
20 Q Did you ever say to him "oh, | can't deal with the 20 brickyards, yes. l
21 pension plan, you handle that"? Or words to that effect. Did | 21 Q And did the pension plan come up? i
22 you ever throw up your hands and say "oh, | can't deal with | 22 A No. &
23 the financial side of this company, you handle that, John.” 23 Q Didthe finances — ]
24 A No, | never said that. 24 A The pension plan was always discussed because of i
25 25 l

the unfunded liability and that was the big concem, because
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Page 46 Page 48

1 there was $1.8 million of unfunded liability and during the 1 fiduciary from the beginning; right?

2 transaction, there was talk about how much that was going to | 2 A Yes. He put himself in.

3 hinder us in moving forward with the company. 3 Q Correct.

4 Q Theunfunded liability. 4q A Yes.

5 A Right. 5 Q So I'm saying -- he did put himself in. I'm

6 Q And did Mr. Jumper have a plan to rectify that 6 saying there are two scenarios here. He put himself in

7 unfunded liability? 7 without you knowing about it, he had no authority to do it

8 A No. 8 and it was all a fraud from the very beginning. Or, he put

9 Q Did he ever propose one to you? 9 himself in, forged signatures, but forged the signatures
10 A No. . 10 Dbecause you were either too busy or distracted or absentee,
11 Q Did he ever offer his services to bridge that gap? 11 and he thought "oh, Mr. Blair" — I'm speaking as Jumper—
12 A No. 12 “"Mr. Blair is too busy with his publishing business and he's
13 Q Is there any way that he thought that you 13 got this brother up there who's not paying attention and |
14 authorized him to do that? 14 need to get involved, and he wants me to do this."
15 A No. 15 A In 2015, John and | were not talking. | had no
16 Q So tell me how Mr. Jumper could think that he had 16 personal relationship with him and he had no relationship
17 the authority to be the fiduciary for the pension plan. Walk 17 with the businesses. Nor was he tasked in any way with
18 me through that. You alluded to it earlier, but just walk me 18 handling the businesses.
19 through that thought process for him. 19 He had — | was aware that he had set up 401k’s.
20 A For him. 20 MR. CLAYTON: | can't help you answer.
21 Q Yeah. 21 Q You answer what you know. It's not an SAT test,
22 A | don't know how to speak to that. 22 just whatever you know.
23 Q Well, we know about the forged documents; right? 23 A Yeah. In 2015, there was norelationship and he
24 A Right. 24 was notinvolved. And for him to think that he.had the
25 Q We discussed those. So there's two scenarios that 25 ability to act as a fiduciary with regard to those pension

Page 47 Page 49

1 | can think of, and you should free to add scenarios. 1 funds is just not an imaginable thing, because he was not

2 One scenario is he forged them outright. So you 2 involved with me, he was notinvolved with the companies.

3 gave him no authority to do it, there was no way he thought 3 Q Now this is now in 2015. | understood that, |

4 he had the authority to do it, they're all fakes. He put 4 understood the time line. I'm talking now about 2007, 2008,

5 himselfin charge and then did the withdrawals. Is that one 5 back when your relationship was better. Right? Your

6 scenario? 6 relationship was better. You —

7 A That's one scenario. 7 A Yes.

8 Q Okay, there's a second scenario under which he 8 Q - had the one incident of dishonesty and you

9 forged the documents, it's not your signature, you didn't 9 addressed it with him; right?
10 know about it. But through words or deeds, he thought you 10 A Yes.
11 were going to be okay withit. Does that make sense? 11 Q On Mount Savage. But with respectto—and |
12 A It makes sense. 12 understand about the withdrawals, | hear your testimony
13 Q Isit possible? 13 there. But as far as the original moment, because he did
14 A No. 14 become the fiduciary back at the very beginning, in ‘07, '08
15 Q Okay, why is it not possible? 15 when you first bought the companies before the withdrawals.
16 A Because | would never authorize —~ to me the 16 There were no withdrawals until 2015; right?
17 pension funds are a sacred trust between the company and the | 17 A (Witness nods.)
18 union guys. And | would never put those funds at risk 18 Q Yes? You have to answer audibly.
19 outside of some company like Merrill Lynch or Bank of 19 A Right, yes.
20 America. The thought of doing that would scare the hell out 20 Q So I'm talking about now in the beginning, 2007,
21 of me. 21 2008, is there any way that Mr. Jumper, through a meeting
22 Q Understood on the withdrawals, | understand what 22 with you and Mr. Porterfield or through some action you took ||
23 you're saying. And | don't think anyone could argue that you 23 orlack of action you didn't take, that he thought he should
24 knew about the withdrawals. What I'm saying is what about the { 24 step in and be the fiduciary for this pension plan?

fiduciary aspect? Because he did put himselfin as the 25 A I'm sure there’s a way he convinced himself that |
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Page 52

Page 50

1 that was possible. 1 Q And who at Merrill Lynch?

2 MR. MOGAN: Let's go off the record -- go ahead. 2 A | didn't know any names.

3 MR. DISKIN: Is there anything that you can recall 3 Q Did you come to learn a name?

4 that -- you don't know what he thought or why he thoughtit-| 4 A Not at that time.

S - Mr. Jumper - but is there anything that you did that you 5 Q When did you learn a name at Memill Lynch?

6 can recall that you think possibly gave him reason to believe| 6 A In2016.

7 that? And there might not be, but we're just trying to make 7 Q And what was that name?

8 sure. 8 A Amina Williams.

9 And let me give you an example. Sometimes people | 9 Q Amina Williams. And what was her role?
10 say look, I'm really busy, you're allowed to sign my name 10 A | think she's a department head for these kinds of
11 unless it's over this dollar amount, unless it's over this, 11 jnvestments.
12 or sometimes people just as a practice might give someone | 12 Q Okay, and how did you come to know her?
13 authority verbally and say | don't have time to deal with 13 A As aresult of acquiring the history of the
14 minor things, I'o busy doing my publishing business, so go | 14 paperwork that had been accomplished with regard to the
15 ahead and take care of it. 15 pension fund.
16 We're just asking if you recall anything along 16 Q And do you know someone named Carroll Todd?
17 those lines that you might have — 17 A Yes.
18 THE WITNESS: | don't recall anything, but that 18 Q Whois he?
19 very well could have taken place in some manner, initially 19 A He is the broker in Germantown, Tennessee, just
20 when we had a better relationship. 20 outside Memphis, that was — had charge of this investment,
21 MR. DISKIN: You don't recall anything? 21 that oversawit.
22 THE WITNESS: But | don't recall anything. 22 Q Which investment, sir?
23 MR. DISKIN: And you don't recall ever giving him 23 A The pension fund.
24 pemission to sign you name. 24 Q Okay. So he was the broker for the pension fund?
25 THE WITNESS: Absolutely not. 25 A Yes.

Page 51 Page 53

1 MR. DISKIN: And there was no practice -- did you 1 Q Okay. And did you have any dealings with Mr.

2 ever let your brother sign your name? 2  Todd?

3 THE WITNESS: No. Randy is kind of squeamish 3 A It seems to me | had a conversation with him years

4 about doing that. 4 ago, butl dont remémber the nature of that conversation, or

5 MR. DISKIN: Yeah. 5 any of the content.

6 THE WITNESS: Randy has never signed my signature. 6 Q So it sounds like — just to summarize the

7 MR. DISKIN: Okay. 7 testimony a little bit, and you correct me if I'm wrong, it

8 MR. MOGAN: Let's go off the record at 11:52 a.m. 8 sounds like since you had acquired the Mount Savage

9 onApril 13th. Let's take like 10 or 15 minutes. | want to 9 Refractory first and their pension plan was a group plan that
10 just look through my notes and talk to Peter for a little 10 you couldn't access, you assumed the Snow Shoe plan was the
11 while. 11 same; right?
12 (A short recess was taken.) 12 A Uh-huh.
13 MR. MOGAN: We are back on the record at 12:04 13 Q So you didn't put much thought into the Snow Shoe
14 p.m.on April 13th, 2017. 14 plan when you first acquired Snow Shoe; is that right?
15 Mr. Blair, while we were off the record, did you 15 A No, | didn't, other than just trying to make the
16 have any discussion with the SEC staff — any substantive 16 unfunded liability.
17 discussions? 17 Q Okay. And as far as the unfunded liability, what
18 THE WITNESS: No. 18 discussions did you have regarding how to bridge that
19 MR. MOGAN: Thank you. 19 liability?
20 BY MR. MOGAN: 20 A The only way we were going to be able to bridge
21 Q Before we went on break, we were talking about Mr. 21 thatis by having some profits in the company, and it took a
22 Jumper and the pension plan. When you bought the Snow Shoe | 22 long time to get that to happen. And it wasn't until the
23 Refractories brickyard, who was in charge of the pension 23 restructuring of the loan that | think we were able to pay
24 plan, Mr. Blair? 24 down a substantial part of the unfunded liability in 2012.
25 A | thought Merrill Lynch was in charge of it. 25

Q Do you know what the pension plan was invested in
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Q And in that discussion with Mr. Park, did Mr.

Page 54 Page 56
1 when you first acquired it? 1 Jumper indicate that he was the fiduciary for the pension
2 A No. 2 plan; do you know?
3 Q Did you ever come to find out what it was invested 3 A Idon't know that he did.
4 in? - 4 Q Do you know if Mr. Park thought that Mr. Jumper
5 A Ifinally did in 2016. And by invested in, | mean 5 was the fiduciary for the pension plan?
6 the details of how it was being invested by Merrill Lynch. | 6 A | can't speak to that.
7 mean, | always knew that it was with Merrill Lynch. 7 Q Why would Mr. Jumper be concemned about the
8 Q Okay. And how was it being invested? 8 pension plan in 2012? Do | have that right, that refinancing }}
9 A In stocks and bonds and municipal bonds. It was 9 wasin2012?
10 kind of a floating investment, it changes on a weekly basis. 10 A Well, | think that he was -- | don't know that he
11 Q And Mr. Todd was the one who was overseeing that? | 11 was concerned with it, | think that that was just one of the
12 A Yes. 12 items on the table that we were saying that we weren't yet
13 Q Did Mr. Todd ever contact you regarding those 13 able to deal with, because of the kind of onerous loan
14 investments during the time you owned Snow Shoe? 14 structure with First Capital, which to us was kind of a loan
15 A No. ) 15 shark situation. They had everything set up in such a way
16 Q And whatiis Mr. Todd's role now? 16 that they took our last dime at the end of the year. And so
17 A | think he's still the broker on record. 17 we were - one of the things on the table was we needed to
18 Q Are you currently in touch with him regarding the 18 take care of this unfunded liability. And the loan seemed to
19 pensionplan? 19 be a means of being able todo that. So itwas just one of
20 A | spoke with him about three weeks ago. 20 the items on the table -- one of our responsibilities.
21 Q And what was that discussion regarding? 21 Q And why would Mr. Jumper think that would be one J
22 A Asking him about the performance of the fund. 22 of the responsibilities on the table?
23 Q And how was the performance? - 23 A Because it was presented in conversation with the
24 A Over the last two years it had done very well, and 24 whole idea of restructuring. You know, these are the things
25 | was expecting it to have done pretty well with the recent 25 that we've not been able to do and we need to restructure in
Page 55 Page 57
1 marketclimb. Butithad pretty much stayed the same. 1 orderto be able to do them. And that was just one of the
2 Q So as far as the gap, it sounds like you were 2 items.
3 locking to the profits from the company to put back into the 3 Q And Mr. Jumper was brought into the restructuring
4 pension plan; is that right? 4 by you; is that correct? ;
5 A That's comrect 5 A Yes.
6 Q Youweren't locking to get more aggressive on the 6 Q Okay. And did he know about the unfunded
7 pension plan's investments; were you? 7 liability in the pension plan?
8 A No. | wouldn't even know what that would mean. 8 A | assume he did.
9 Q. Okay. So getting back to Mr. Jumper, we had 9 Q Do you know how he knew that?
10 discussed before the break a little bit about the possibility 10 A Because it had always been there, from the very
11 that while he did forge your signature and you did testify 11 beginning.
12 that he had no authority to write your name on any document, | 12 Q Okay. It was an issue when you first acquired the
13 thathe mayi have thought in his own head — and you're 13 company? '
14 speculating obviously -- that he might have been able to 14 A Yes.
15 exercise authority over the pension plan; do you rememberour | 15 Q And he was there at the acquisition.
16 discussion there? 16 A Yes. And he presented that to us, that that was
17 A Yes. 17 something that we were buyinginto.
18 Q Okay. Sodoyou know if Mr. Jumper ever spoke to 18 Q He presented that as an issue, as a problem.
19 anybody at Snow Shoe regarding the pension plan besides 19 A Yes.
20 yourself? 20 MR. MOGAN: All right, let's look at a document.
21 A I think he did have a conversation with Ron Park 21 This has been previously marked as Exhibit Number
22 because of the restructuring of the loan, and we were hoping 22 3. Ifyou could just take a look at this, Mr. Blair, and let
23 to be able to take down some of the unfunded liability as a 23 me know when you are ready for questions, sir.
24 resultof that refinancing. 24 (Exhibit Number 3 was
25

previously marked.)
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Page 58 Page 60
1 (The witness reviews a document.) 1 Q When did you learn of that?
2 THE WITNESS: Okay. 2 A In2016.
3 BY MR. MOGAN: 3 Q In connection with the withdrawals we've
4 Q Do you recognize this document? 4 discussed.
5 A ldo. 5 A Yes.
6 Q What is this document, sir? 6 MR. MOGAN: You can put that aside, just flip it
7 A It's a Board of Directors Resolution that | was 7 over and put it down. Thank you very much.
8 given by Merrill Lynch. 8 I'm going to show you another document that's been
9 Q And when were you given this by Merrill Lynch? 9 previously marked as Exhibit Number 4.
10 A March of 2016. 10 (Exhibit Number 4 was
11 Q This is in connection with your inquiries as to 11 previously marked.)
12 the withdrawals? 12 MR. DISKIN: Could | ask a question on the last
13 A Correct. 13 exhibit? Mr. Blair, do you keep a calendar or, you know, a
14 Q Okay. Were you at a meeting on April 27, 2007 at 14 Day-Timer type thing, anything that you could consult to see
15 5:30 in the afternoon in Memphis? 15 if you were in Memphis - | believe you said it was in
16 A |have no idea what | was doing on that day. 16 Memphis.
17 Q Okay. Do you recall a meeting with Mr. 17 THE WITNESS: Uh-huh.
18 Porterfield and Mr. Jumper regarding the pension in oraround | 18 MR. DISKIN: We're going back a lot of years. So
19 2007? ' 19 some people are very fastidious about -
20 A Ido not. 20 THE WITNESS: You mean on that day, was | at home !
21 Q Isit possible this meeting occurred? 21 in my home in Memphis. i
22 A It's possible. 22 MR. DISKIN: Right, okay, so that's where you
23 Q Isthat your — there'’s an Authorized Officer line 23 lived. So you could have been there.
24 on the bottom. 24 THE WITNESS: Right. Probably was there in
25 A Right. 25 Memphis.
Page 59 Page 61
1 Q Is that your name, Brett C. Blair? 1 MR. DISKIN: Do you keep a Day-Timer?
2 A That's my name. 2 THE WITNESS: | do not. The best way for me to go
3 Q Is that your signature? 3 back and look at potentially what | did on any given day is
4q A No, sir. 4 my emails. |actually have a file with emails going | think
5 Q Okay. Do you know who signed that? S back to this time, | have all the emails I've ever received
6 A 1donot. 6 or written.
7 Q Butit's notyou. 7 MR. DISKIN: Okay.
8 A Itis not my signature. 8 THE WITNESS: So | could potentially — that's my
9 Q Under Secretary, there's a signature. Do you know 9 calendar.
10 whose signature thatis? 10 MR. DISKIN: Okay. We'll talk to your counsel.
11 A Looks like John Jumper. 11 THE WITNESS: Okay. That might be helpful.
12 Q Okay. It's hard to tell from this but there's 12 MR. MOGAN: Thank you. | appreciate that, sir.
13 J's. 13 BY MR. MOGAN:
14 A lrecognize his J's. 14 Q If you could look at Exhibit Number 4, Mr. Blair
15 Q Okay. So that looks like his signature? 15 andletme know when you're ready for questions. You're
16 A I, yes, halfway does. A messy form of it if it 16 probably familiar with this one as well.
17 is 17 (The witness reviews a document.) '
18 Q Okay. So this document, Mr. Blair, indicates that 18 MR. CLAYTON: This is a form document.
19 the pension plan was terminating Bank of America and moving | 19 MR. MOGAN: Yes, it's a form document.
20 the funds to Mermill Lynch; is that right? 20 THE WITNESS: Okay.
21 A Cormect 21 BY MR. MOGAN:
22 Q And did you approve such a move? 22 Q Do you recognize this document?
23 A | don'trecall that | did. 23 A ldo.
24 Q Did you learn of such a move at some point? 24 Q What s this document, sir?
25 A Yes. 25

A It's the Defined Benefit Plan for the Snow Shoe
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Page 62 Page 64
1 Refractories Pension Fund. 1 And you see Mr. Jumper there?
2 Q It's entered into May 22nd, 2007. 2 A Correct.
3 A Correct. 3 Q VP of Finance. Wnat does that mean?
4q Q Were you the owner of Snow Shoe at that time? 4q A We've never had a vice president of finance at the
5 A | believe | was. 5 company.
6 Q Do you recognize the handwriting on this document? 6 Q So that position does not exist?
7 A ldonot. 7 A It does not exist, never did exist.
8 Q Isityours? 8 Q Okay. So - and do you recognize that signature
9. A No,itis not. 9 there next to his name?
10 Q Ifyou go to the last page of the document, 10 A Yes. .
11 there's some signatures and there's a print name. Do you see | 11 Q Is that Mr. Jumper's signature?
12 Mr. Jumper's name there? 12 A -Looks like it.
13 A Uh-huh. 13 MR. MOGAN: We can put that aside. And let's look
14 Q It says "By Authorized Signature,” Mr. Jumper, 14 at Exhibit Number 6. | appreciate you keeping my neat pile.
15 April 27, 2007. Was Mr. Jumper authorized to sign for the 15 Thank you.
16 pension plan on this document? 16 This is a two-page document, sir, excuse me.
17 A No. And again, he may have thought he was, but no. 17 (Exhibit Number 6 was
18 Q Whywould he have thought he was? 18 previously marked.)
19 A Well, going back to our questions about whether 19 BY MR. MOGAN:
20 John felt that he might have, you know, been helping out by 20 Q So this is again Bank of America/Merrill Lynch
21 taking care of the paperwork for these funds, and he may very | 21 Named Fiduciaries. This goes up to 2012 now. It looks like
22 well have felt that he was helping out. And it would have 22 thisis after the Bank of America/Merrill Lynch merger. We
23 been—in 2007, it would have been a matter of continuing to | 23 mentioned Mr. Park eartier in your testimony. Do you see Mr.
24 fry and close the transaction and get the last few paperworks } 24 Park’s signature there? '
25 inorder. Butagain, he was being tasked to do this for me, 25 A Yes.
Page 63 Page 65§
1 the dosing, and was being paid for it. And if he felt that 1 Q Is that HR Manager-CFO; is that right? '
2 he was helping out, then fine. But | don't recall whether he 2 A Yes.
3 was tasked to do this or not. 3 Q Do you believe that Mr. Park’s signature there is
4q MR. MOGAN: Thank you. You can put that aside. 4 genuine?
5 THE WITNESS: Okay. S A | can't say that I'm familiar with his signature.
6 MR. MOGAN: Let me show you what's been previously 6 Q Do you see Mr. Jumper there again as vice
7 marked as well, Mr. Blair, as Exhibit Number 5 in this case. 7 president?
8 If you could look at Number 5 for me, please. It's a one- 8 A Yes.
9 page document. It's a Named Fiduciaries and Authorized 9 Q And again, let me just reiterate, you had
10 Signature Information. 10 testified earlier that the position of vice president does
11 THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. 11 notexist.
12 MR. MOGAN: [f you could look at this, it's dated 12 A Well, | testified that the vice president of
13 in 2008, January 8, 2008. 13 finance did not exist.
14 (Exhibit Number 5 was 14 Q Okay.
15 previously marked.) 15 A And then suddenly, this is vice president.
16 BY MR. MORGAN: 16 Q Yes, thank you for the distinction.
17 Q Whnois Hazel Renard? 17 A Yeah, and that title was really never given to -
18 A She was the human resources employee at Snow Shoe | 18 anyone, ever at the company.
19 Refractories. 19 Q So justto reiterate — | appreciate your
20 Q Okay, an HR person there? 20 exactitude.
21 A Yes. 21 A Yes.
22 Q It says here assistant plant manager. Was that 22 Q So as far as the VP of finance on the previous
23 hertitle? 23 document, that position did not exist. And now it's vice
24 A Yes, yes. 24 president and you're also testifying that position does not
25 exist; right?

N
H O

Q And then we have the named investment fiduciaries.

ey ———— e ———
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Page 66 Page 68
1 A Correct. 1 A Bob Wilder.
2 Q Do you believe that Mr. Park knew about this 2 Q Bob Wilder, okay. Did Mr. Wilder know about the
3 documentin 2012? 3 withdrawals at the time they occurred?
4 A ldon't know. 4 A Idon'tknow.
5 Q Okay. ) 5 Q Did you ever discuss that with him?
6 A Mr. Park has a very good memory of all of this and 6 A I think| did after he was let go.
7 he could tell you, but | can't speak fo it. 7 Q Okay. And whatwas that discussion?
8 MR. CLAYTON: Can we go off the record for a 8 A |think he said he was not aware.
9 second? 9 Q He said he was not aware. Do you believe him?
10 MR. MOGAN: Sure. We can go off the record a 10 A | was suspicious.
11 12:22 p.m,, yes. 11 Q Why?
12 (A short recess was taken.) 12 A Because things didn't add up. And | don't know
13 MR. MOGAN: Wel'll go back on the record at 12:24 13 that| can reaily speak to the details of that except to say
14 p.m.on April 13th. 14 that —I've had a bad string of luck in hiring accountants
15 BY MR. MOGAN: 15 and Bob Wilder was also a real funny character, non-
16 Q SoMr. Blair, you were testifying about this 16 communicative. We could never get information out of him.
17 document, Named Fiduciaries and Authorized Signature 17 He seemed reluctant at times to give us information, even the
18 Information. Mr. Park's name is on the document, Mr. Jumper's | 18 most basic information, call us as a courtesy call and let us
19 nameis on the document. Do you believe that Mr. Park knew 19 know whatwas going on with the company. Because he was up
20 that Mr. Jumper was signing the Named Fiduciaries and 20 there at Snow Shoe, Randy was down at Mount Savage, and when
21 Authorized Signature Information regarding the pension plan? | 21 | hired him, | really wanted to have some ears on the ground.
22 A |don't know, because | can't speak to whether 22 And he never tumed out to be that kind of person.
23 that's his signature or not. And | can't recail whether Ron 23 So | had my suspicions about what he knew or
24 spoke to me about that, that these documents were signed. | 24 didn't know and when Randy went up there to let him go, Randy
25 don't know. 25 got a really strange vibe from him. Randy made some comment
, Page 67 Page 69 |
le Q Did Mr. Park have any responsibility for thee 1 about how bad things were and how difficult things were
2 pension plan at Snow Shoe? 2 financially and Bob looked at Randy in the office and he
3 A Yes. 3 said, "Oh, you have no idea." And he did not elaborate on ||
4 Q Wnat was his responsibility for the pension plan 4 that. Butlooking back on that, | think that that's what he
5 at Snow Shoe? 5 was referring to by that.
6 A He was keeping track of the unfunded liability and 6 | believe that we let Bob go in October of 2015,
7 the payouts. And he was working in restructuring of the loan | 7 but I'm not sure.
8 in 2012, to try and save money in order to pay down some of | 8 Q After these revelations; is that correct?
9 the unfunded liability. 9 A Yeah.
10 Q Okay. Mr. Park — did Mr. Park know about the 10 MR. CLAYTON: I'm sorry, | don't think that was
11 series of withdrawals that we discussed earlier today by Mr. { 11 correct.
12 Jumper at the time they occurred? 12 THE WITNESS: No, no. No, not after— 2015, the
13 A In2012? 13 revelations had not — the revelations occurred in 2016.
14 Q The withdrawals started in 2015; is that right? 14 BY MR. MOGAN:
15 A He was no longer around. 15 Q Soyou let him go before — why did you let him go
16 Q Wnere was Mr. Park then? 16 then, justbecause he was non-communicative?
17 A He was working for another company. 17 A Non-communicative. s
18 Q When did he leave Snow Shoe? 18 Q Do youbelieve he had a good relationship with Mr. |
19 A | don'trememberthe date. 19 Jumper?
20 Q Did he leave on his own accord? 20 A If he did, I'd have no idea that they were
21 A Yes. 21 talking.
22 Q Because you had testified earlier that you had 22 Q Okay.
23  worked well with him. 23 A Because John was not involved in the company in
24 A Yes. 24 any capacity.
25 Q Wno replaced Mr. Park? 25

e et e P et~ A £ . P = =1 me e

Q To your knowledge.
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Page 70 Page 72}

1 A To my knowledge. 1 Snow Shoe, besides Mr. Jacobs? Was Mr. Wilder one of those i
2 Q Right. 2 people? i
3 A Now right at that moment, October, November, he 3 A Yes. | believe so. If he did, | had no idea that
4 and | had had that conversation about selling the company. 4 John was calling up there.
5 Q Uh-huh. 5 Q Do you know if he went there physically?
6 A But just prior to that, no. 6 A During 20157
7 MR. MOGAN: Okay, you can put that aside. Thank 7 Q Yeah.
8 you. 8 A No.
9 I'm going to reintroduce again Exhibit 7 9 Q Youdon'tknow or hedidn'tgo?
10 previously marked. Please ake a look at Exhibit 7 for me, 10 A Hedidn'tgo.
11 please. Again, a Named Fiduciaries form, this is from 2014. 11 Q Okay. Do you know if he went there in 2014?
12 (Exhibit Number 7 was 12 A That would be a surprise also.
13 previously marked.) 13 Q Do you know if he went there in 2013 or any year?
14 BY MR. MOGAN: 14 Would the fact of an in-person visit surprise you?
15 Q Again, we see Mr. Jumper listed as vice president. 15 A Yes.
16 You testified that position did not exist. Who is Mr. 16 Q Why would it surprise you?
17 Jacobs? 17 A Because we fell outin 2012. Once the loan had
18 A The plant engineer. - 18 taken place and the issues with the checks that were written,
19 Q And why would he be on this form? 19 we had a parting of the ways at that point.
20 A That's a good question. Mark at times has - 20 °  Q Whoelse besides Mr. Wilder and Mr. Jacobs and Mr.

during the Premier years, the previous owner, and during my 21 Pouge —whoam | forgetting that Mr. Jumper cultivated at
ownership has been the pseudo director of the company and at | 22 Snow Shoe? Anybody else that you know?

NN
N =

23 times we've entrusted him with running the company and then | 23 A Huh-uh. Kaprevich, | have no idea whether
24 atother times not. So he certainly would have felt that he 24 Kaprevich and John Jumper had a relationship.
25 could sign anything at the company. But that was another 25 Q Whois Kaprevich?
Page 71 Page 73 ;
1 issue, like Bob Wilder, like Jeff Pouge, Mark Jacobs was a 1 A John Kaprevich was the manager of the plant for !
2 bigissue at the company, was non-communicative, was always | 2 three years. [
3 agitated with us, didn't like our involvement. 3 Q How do you spell his last name, if you know? i
4q And that's a legacy thing. Jacobs had been there 4 A K-a-p-r-e-v-i-c-h. ;
5 with Premier and | think even with J.H. France, and that 5 Q Okay. He's another possible person that Mr. E
6 plant had pretty much run with no oversight for years. And so 6 Jumper communicated with? [
7 all the employees there wanted to be left alone, they just 7 A Yeah, possible. But John Kaprevich mostly was ;
8 wanted to do their job, they didn't want any oversight and 8 communicative with us and told us what was going on, so | i
9 Jacobs was one of those individuals. 9 think that's less likely. I
10 So throughout the history of the company, he 10 MR. MOGAN: You can put thataside. Let's look at i
11 probably has signed many things. 11 previously marked Exhibit Number 8. This has a fax cover on i
12 Q But to your knowledge, he's not a named 12 itand then a page behind it. }
13 administrative fiduciary of the pension plan? 13 (Exhibit Number 8 was f
14 A Mark Jacobs? 14 previously marked.) {
15  Q Yeah 15 BY MR. MOGAN: 5
16 A No. 16 Q Ifyou could look at that please. ? \
17 Q Do you believe Mr. Jumper asked him to sign this? 17 (The witness reviews a document.) ]
18 A |think so, and that looks like Mark's signature. 18 Q Itlooks like it's from Mr. Todd. ;
19 Q Okay, so thatlooks genuine to you. Do you believe 19 A Uh-huh. i
20 Mr. Jacobs thought that Mr. Jumper was the fiduciary for the 20 Q Friday, September 12th, looks like it's probably ]
21 pension fund? 21 in 2014 based on the date of the second page. You see Mr. [
22 A Probably because John and -- John had also gained 22 Jacobs' name and Mr. Wilder, both names we've seen before. I
23 theconfidence of Mark Jacobs and they oftentimes 23 Mark Jacobs is signing as director here again. Do you
24 commiserated over me and Randy. 24 recognize this document? i
25 Q Who else did Mr. Jumper gain the confidence of at 25 A Perhaps. | don't - there were so many documents

T e —————r
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Q Okay. Thisisreferringto a $3 mitlion senior

Page 74 Page 76
1 that | received from Merrill Lynch, I'm not sure if this is 1 promissory note issued by an entity called American
2 one that was in that stack. And I'm assuming it was. 2 Investments Fund |, LLC. Do you know what American
3 Q Okay. So Mr. Jacobs is director, we discussed that | 3 Investments Fund I, LLC is?
4 and Mr Wilder is CFO. Is that - was that his position? 4 A |1 do now.
5 A Yes. 5 Q But you didn't know at the time?
6 Q Are Mr. Jacobs and Mr. Wilder still at the 6 A No.
7 company? 7 Q Okay. Did you know about this $3 million
8 A No. 8 investment in March of 2015?
9 Q Did you dismiss them both? 9 A | didaot.
10 A | dismissed Bob Wilder and Mark Jacobs left of his | 10 Q Did you know that the fund was going to be
11 own accord. 11 acquiring American Tubing Arkansas?
12 Q When did Mr. Jacobs leave? 12 A |did not.
13 A In November 2015. 13 Q There's something in the third paragraph | wanted
14 Q And remind me again when Mr. Wilder left? 14 to ask you about, Mr. Blair. It says "This private debt
15 A September or October of 2015. 15 instrument conforms to the company’s plan document and meets
16 Q Both atthe end of 2015. 16 the company's investment policy guidelines.” !
17 A Yes. 17 What is — do you know what that means?
18 Q And you testified earlier that it's possible that 18 A | know what it means but the company didn't really
19 Mr. Jacobs and Mr. Wilder believed that Mr. Jumper was a | 19 have a plan document that I'm aware of. We looked through
20 fiduciary of the pension plan; correct? 20 the files to find any kind of plan document for the pension
21 A They could have thought that. 21 fund and | don't know that that ever got into the settiement
22 MR. MOGAN: You can put that aside. Give me a 22 papers.
23 moment. 23 Q Do you know if the plan had investment policy
24 (Brief pause.) 24 guidelines?
25 MR. MOGAN: I'm going to introduce a new exhibit, | 25 A No, | don't think it did.
Page 75 Page 77
1 we are on Exhibit Number 15, | believe — yes, 15. This is 1 Q Wnho would know if the plan had investment policy
2 going to be 15. I'll just hand this to you. It's on Snow 2 guidelines, if it's not you?
3 Shoe Refractories letterhead to Ms. Amina Williams, you 3 A Probably the previous owners.
4 mentioned her name earlier today. 4q Q Would Mr. Todd know, the broker?
5 (Exhibit Number 15 was 5 A He might, but | would think that those documents
6 marked for identification.) 6 would have been sent with the cache of documents that | got
7 THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. 7 from Amina Williams when | requested them in March of 2016.
8 MR. MOGAN: Trust officer, Bank of America. Take 8 Q And those documents were not included?
9 a moment to look at this and let me know when you're ready to | 9 A No.
10 discussit. 10 Q Did Mr. Todd know about these transfers at the
11 (The witness reviews a document.) 11 time they occurred, Mr. Blair?
12 THE WITNESS: I'm ready. 12 A We had a conversation with Todd and from what |
13 BY MR. MOGAN: 13 canrecall, John and Carroll Todd had a conversation before
14 Q Okay. Is that the Snow Shoe Refractories 14 this took place and Carroll Todd advised John not to move the
15 letterhead, to your knowledge? 15 monies. The best | can recall from my conversation with
16 A Itsclosetoit 16 Camoll Todd months ago, a yéar ago, whenever that was. But
17 Q Do you believe that it was created by scmeone or 17 | believe that Carroll Todd knew ‘at the time that it was
18 did this person actually use the proper letterhead? 18 taking place.
19 A Itlooks like it was created. | don't remember 19 Q But he advised against it.
20 theline at the top and things being arranged like this. 20 A Yes.
21 Q Okay. So thisletteris from Mr. Jumper who signs . 21 Q Were you in touch with Mr. Todd at all before
22 asvice president. And you testified earlier that there was 22 these events transpired?
23 no such position. Is that stiill your testimony? 23 A No.
24 A Yes. 24 Q Okay, thank you. Did you know who Mr. Todd was?
25 25

A Vaguely, yes. | knew that he was a Merrill Lynch
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Page 78 Page 80

1 broker. It would have been hard for me to recall the name 1 marked for identification.)

2 Dbecause | didn't hear it that often, but | would have been 2 BY MR. MOGAN:

3 able to put it together. ' 3 Q I'l hand this to you, Mr. Blair, 16. Take a look

4q Q Are you surprised that he didn't call you after 4 atthat.

5 receiving a request for a $3 million withdrawal? 5 A Okay, I'm ready.

6 A Yes, and —- or anyone at Merrill Lynch calling 6 Q This is on the Snow Shoe Refractories letterhead

7 Snow Shoe itself and making sure that it was authorized. 7 again. It's again to Amina Williams, November of 2015, it

8 Q You're surprised that they didn't do that second 8 refers to a $2 million withdrawal. . It says here, "Mr. Jumper

9 check? 9 has been appointed as successor trustee to a separate trust H
10 A Yes. 10 for American Investments Fund 2."
11 MR. MOGAN: We can put this aside. Thank you. 11 Do you know what American Investments Fund 2 is?
12 BY MR. MOGAN: 12 A 1do now, | did not then.
13 Q Do you know -- the $3 million withdrawal was given | 13 Q Wnatisit, sir?
14 in exchange for a promissory note; correct? 14 A It's an LLC shell that John created in order to
15 A Yes. 15 route this money into.
16 Q Do you know if that promissory note has been 16 MR. MOGAN: And again, it's signed John Jumper,
17 paying interest and principal to the pension plan? 17 vice president. We can go on to the next exhibit and put
18 A Ithas. 18 that one aside, please.
19 Q Hasit missed any paym?nts? 19 We're up to Exhibit Number 17.
20 A No. 20 (Exhibit Number 17 was
21 Q Has the investment been profitable for the pension | 21 marked for identification.)
22 plan? 22 BY MR. MOGAN:
23 A |suppose so, it's been eight percent, so that's a 23 Q This is again a letter regarding the same two
24 pretty good return. But the risk has — | would never take 24 million, issued by American Investments Fund 2 and it refers §
25 the eight percent with the risk that came with it. 25 to a promissory note.

Page 79 Page 81

1 Q And what risk are ‘you referring to? 1 Are you aware of that note, sir?

2 A The $3 million note is not a senior note and it 2 A No.

3 has no liability — has no - 3 Q Have you received any payments on a promissory

4 Q Collateral? 4 note from American Investments Fund 2?

5 A Collateral. Sorry. It's not collateralized at S A Nothing.

6 all, to my understanding. 6 MR. MOGAN: You can put that aside.

7 Q Okay. Have you been contacted at all by the 7 THE WITNESSE And I'll say that we received no

8 holder of the note? 8 plan to pay nor was it ever exposed to us that there was a

9 A No. 9 plan to pay.
10 Q Have you had any dealings with Trent Curry? 10 MR. MOGAN: Let's look at Exhibit Number 18.
11 A Never have, don't know that I've ever met him. 11 (Exhibit Number 18 was
12 Q Okay. What about David Lensing? 12 marked for identification.)
13 A David was involved with John Jumper as a partner | 13 THE WITNESS: The note on — the second note on
14 in Alluvion and was intimately involved in the closing ofthe | 14 thisthat John put together in an Excel spreadsheet actually
15 two companies. 15 had a payment date of 2035. That's the one detail. The $3 |
16 Q Do you know if Alluvion received any payments from| 16 million withdrawal had a due date of 2025 and the $2 million }
17 theissuance of the promissory note related to the American | 17 withdrawal had a due ¢ate of 2035. i
18 Tubing transaction? 18 BY MR. MOGAN:
19 A That's a good question, that's something we've 19 Q Right. So he dated it further out into time.
20 been trying to get at and we've not been able to determine. | 20 A Those were what | think are the fictitious notes
21 MR. MOGAN: Give me a moment, sir. 21 that he delivered to Conrad Siegel to try and throw Conrad
22 (Brief pause.) 22 Siegel off the trail.
23 MR. MOGAN: We'll mark the next exhibit, it's 23 Q Remind me again who Conrad Siegel is.
24 going to be Exhibit Number 16. Thank you. 24 A The actuarial company.
25 25 Q Look at Exhibit Number 18. This is a Unanimous

(Exhibit Number 16 was

BT ey e e oy Tt e ——— ey
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Page 82 Page 84
1 Wiitten Consent in Lieu of a Meeting of Snow Shoe 1 Q Okay. When was the lasttime you spoke to Mr.
2 Refractories. It refers to the $2 million trust, talks about 2 Porterfield?
3 Mr. Jumper being the trustee. 3 A Itwas - the last time was February or March of
4 A Yes. 4 2016, | believe was the last time.
5 Q Do you recognize this document? 5 Q Arqund the time you leamed of these events.
6 A ldo. _ 6 A Right Randy may have spoken to him a month or
7 Q s that your signature there on the bottom? 7 two after that but since that time we've not had any further
8 A ltis not. 8 conversations. We have had emails from him about his
9 Q Okay. Isthat Mr. Jumper's signature in the upper 9 insurance, his medical insurance, and that has been dealt
10 left-hand comer? 10 with,
11 A | believe itds. 11 Q Was he getting medical insurance through Snow
12 Q And what about Mr. Porterfield? 12 Shoe?
13 A Thatis not his signature. 13 A Yes.
14 Q Not Mr. Porterfield's? 14 Q Okay.
15 A No. 15 A Through Mount Savage | think.
16 Q He told you that's not his signature? 16 Q Through Mount Savage, okay.
17 A No, | know Mr. Porterfield's signature. 17 What do you think Mr. Porterfield's involvement
18 Q Okay, and you're telling me it's not his 18 was here? We discussed it a bit earfier, but | want you to
19 signature. 19 crystalize it and summarize it for me.
20 A It's not his signature. 20 A | think John early on kind of — I'm sorry, let me
21 MR. MOGAN: You can put that aside. Let me show | 21 start again. | think Brent Porterfield had thrown in with
22 you another exhibit. This is Exhibit Number 19. 22 John Jumper pretty early in our ownership of these companies. H
23 (Exhibit Number 19 was 23 And | think he did so because he felt ostracized. And it was
24 marked for identification.) 24 never my intent to make him an executive in the company, an
25 BY MR. MOGAN: 25 officer, or have any kind of leadership role. | was trying
Page 83 Page 85
1 Q Take alook at this, sir, a short letter. This is 1 to take care of him, | appreciated his daughter's work for
2 February 2016, toward the end of the events here, $700,000 2 me, she's an upstanding lady. Brent and | had a friendship
3 promissory note, again issued by the same entity, American 3 then and | wanted him to have some passive income.
4 Investments Fund 2, eight percent coupon, ten year maturity. 4 Q Just sort of remind me, he met Mr. Jumper through
5 Do you recognize this letter? 5 you?
6 A ldo. 6 A Yes.
7 Q Have you received any payments on this promissory 7 Q Because you were friends with Mr. Porterfield
8 note? 8 before you introduced him to Mr. Jumper.
9 A | have not. 9 A Yes.
10 MR. MOGAN: You can put that aside. And I'mgoing | 10 Q Whny do you think he threw in with Mr. Jumper?
11 to show you another exhibit, it's Exhibit Number 20. 11 A | think because he felt ostracized and he felt
12 (Exhibit Number 20 was 12 like his only way to have any kind of control was through
13 marked for identification.) 13 John Jumper.
14 BY MR. MOGAN: 14 Q Soyou think that when he came into these
15 Q If you could look at this, sir. Very similar 15 businesses he wanted some operational role?
16 document to the one we just saw for the $700,000 now, dated { 16 A | guess so, but he was still a minister in the )
17 nowin February of 2016. It talks about a separate trust, 17 Methodist Chu:ch and he had no means to be an officer in the
18 again with Mr. Jumper's signature and the two signatures of 18 company, and he continued to be a minister up until a few
19 Mr. Porterfield and Mr. Blair. 19 years ago.
20 Mr. Blair, is that your signature? 20 Q Thatwas his principal occupation; right?
21 A ltis not. 21 A Yes.
22 Q Is that Mr. Porterfield’s signature? 22 Q Okay. So as faras — when | say, you know,
23 A No. 23 involvement here, Mr. Porterfield’s involvement here, do you
24 Q Al right, thank you. 24 Dbelieve that he helped Mr. Jumper undertake these actions
25 A 25

And these meetings never took place.

with respect to the pension plan or tried to obfuscate in any

- et
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Page 86 Page 88}
1 way? 1 A He says he did.
2 A | think he tried to obfuscate, yes. And once we 2 Q To your brother.
3 were in the middle of discovery, he certainly did try to 3 A Yes.
4 obfuscate. But how — saying thatin reference to our 4 Q Okay.
5 conversations in 2016 with Brent, my brother and I's S A But subsequently in a conversation with my
6 conversation with him. ) 6 attomey, John Jumper — sorry, sorry — Brent Porterfield
7 Q When you say discovery, discovery in a civil case? | 7 was surprised to leam that the signature had been forged or i
8 A No, our own personal discovery of these funds that | 8 signed by Jumper and company on the subsequent withdrawals.
9 had been taken out. 9 He was not aware — he indicated to Drew Clayton that he was l
10 Q Isee. Discoveryis almost a term of art for 10 unaware of that.
11 lawyers. ‘ 11 Q So it sounds like he changed his story. Am |
12 A I'msormry, yes. But how far back Brent 12 getting that right?
13 Porterfield goes — and that is back to March 2015 when the | 13 A Yes, itdoes.
14 initial $3 million was taken out - 14 Q Sounds very confusing.
15 Q Uh-huh. 15 A lteoes.
16 A —Ildon't know when he knew. And we've never 16 Q Okay. So do you have clarity —
17 been able to get atthat. It's something that Randy and | 17 A It's part of the obfuscating.
18 tried to get at, but Brent would never answer in those few 18 Q Asyou sit here today, you think that he's
19 conversations that we had with him. 19 muddying the waters, at best.
20 Q Do you know if Mr. Porterfield has any involvement | 20 A Yes.
21 with American Tubing? 21 Q Okay. Do you believe Mr. Porterfield is a
22 A We leamed thathe had a 25 percent ownership, 22 trustworthy person? You've known him for a longtime, going
23 Dbecause he told us that he had 25 percent ownership of 23  back to the ministry.
24 American Tubing. 24 A |did until he started throwing in with Jumper and
25 Q Did that surprise you? 25 taking his side on some of these key issues, and then | began
Page 87 Page 89
le A Yes,itdid.e 1 to have doubts and | pushed him outside the company. He had
2 Q Why? 2 always been a passive investor, | was willing to listen to
3 A Because he had used pension fund money to enrich 3 him and have him involved up until that point. And for him
4 himself. 4 justto at least be able to bend my ear and telk to me about i
5 Q Explain that for me. S the company and what was going on. But back in 2012 when he
6 A It's my understanding that the pension funds are 6 kind of threw in with John Jumper, at that point, | lost
7 under pretty tight security regulations and that the IRS only 7 faith and trust in him.
8 has certain approved institutions where these kind of 8 Q Did he - did you eventually buy him out of Snow
9 regulated pension funds can be placed. And lasttime | 9 Shoe?
10 checked, American Tubing is not on that list. 10 A No.
11 So it surprised us that personal purchases were 11 Q So he cumently owns part of the company?
12 taking place and being put at risk in non-senior note 12 A Yes.
13 positions for the advancement of people who had no 13 Q Okay. Does that concem you that he's a current
14 relationship to the pension fund. That is, the union guys 14 owner of the company?
15 who were supposed to be getting the money. 15 A Yes, it does.
16 Q Do you know of any concrete steps that Mr. 16 Q Have you looked into purchasing his stake?
17 Porterfield took in connection with the withdrawal from thee 17 A ‘I've notlooked into it, but | was hoping at the
18 pension plan?e 18 close this affair of asking him to relinquish those —
19 A The only vague reference that he made, and he made | 19 Q Thatestake?
20 it to my brother Randy, was that he knew about them and he | 20 A Yes.
21 authorized John to sign his signature. That's it. 21 Q And | take it you're currently not in touch with
22 Q And thats included on the signatures we just saw 22 Mr. Porterfield.
23 on those unanimous consents that were not his signature? 23 A lamnot
24 A Comect. 24 Q Okay. Are you in touch with his daughter?
25 Q That he authorized Mr. Jumper to sign his name. 25 A | ameot.
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Page 90 Page 92
1 Q Has this affected your relationship with his 1 reveal who that company was and to give me access so that |
2 daughter, these — this affair, as you said? 2 could look at the funds and see how they were performing,
3 A | don't know. When she was considering starting to 3 whatwas happening to them. And he kept obfuscating and
4 teach again, this had just started and we didn't know what to 4 promising. So some of those last few details occurred well
S make of her exit, whether it had any relation to this because 5 afterthe 16th of February.
6 itwas so serious, or whether it was just time for her to go 6 Now back to February 16th itself. When | talked to
7 anyway. 7 him initially about where the monies were, what was going on,
8 Q Okay. 8 he of course obfuscated, but three days later, he withdrew
9 MR. MOGAN: Allright, let's go off the record now 9 another $700,000, knowing that — the grave concems that |
10 at 12:59 p.m. on April 13th. Give me please like five, ten 10 bhad and that the actuarial firm I'm sure had at the time.
11 minutes. | want to talk to Peter and we'll have you back in. 11 So | just wanted to get that on the record in case
12 Okay? 12 those sequence of events get lost in the details.
13 (A short recess was taken.) 13 MR. MOGAN: That's very helpful. Anything else,
14 MR. MOGAN: We are back on the record at 1:09 p.m. | 14 sir?
15 on April 13th, 2017. 15 THE WITNESS: No.
16 Mr. Blair, while we were off the record, did you 16 MR. MOGAN: Mr. Clayton, do you wish to clarify —
17 have any substantive conversations with the staff? 17 ask any clarifying questions?
18 THE WITNESS: No, | did not. 18 MR. CLAYTON: No.
19 MR. MOGAN: Thank you. 19 MR. MOGAN: Okay, we are off the record at 1:13
20 Mr. Blair, we have no further questions at this 20 p.m.on April 13th, 2017. Thank you.
21 time. We may, however, call you again to testify in this 21 (Whereupon, the interview was concluded at
22 investigation. Should this be necessary, we will contact Mr. 22 1:13 p.m.)
23 Clayton. 23
24 Mr. Blair, do you wish to clarify anything or add 24
25 anything to the statements you have made today? 25
Page 91 Page 93
1 THE WITNESS: | wanted to make one observation 1 U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
2 about the monies that were taken out February 16, 2016. 2 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
3 MR. MOGAN: Yes, sir. ) 3
1 THE WITNESS: Sorry, the money was taken out 4 I, Susan M. Breedlove, reporter, hereby cerify that
5 Febnuary 18th of 2016, 5 the foregoing transcript, consisting of 92 pages is a
6 MR. MOGAN: That's the second —
7 THE WITNESS: That's the $700,000, the third. 6 complete, true and accurate transcript of the testimony
8 MR. MOGAN: Right, the last withdrawal. 7 indicated, held on April 13, 2017 at Atlanta, Georgia
9 THE WITNESS: The last withdrawal of $700,000. 8 Inthe Matter of: American Investments Fund |, LLC
10 MR. MOGAN: Yes, sir. 9 A-03754-A
L THE WITNESS: Three days — two or three days 10 | further certify that this proceeding was recorded by
12 prior to that withdrawal, Conrad Siegel, the actuarial firm, 11 me, and that the foregoing transcript has been prepared under
13 alerted Randy Swafford, my brother, about the withdrawal of o
L . . X 12 my direction.
14 the three million and the two million. We immediately at
15 that moment on thatday, on the 16th, got ahold of John 13
16 Jumper and asked him what was going on. He had yet to 14 Date: April 26, 2017
17 fulfill his obligation to report to Conrad Siege! about the 15,
18 whereabouts of the money and how it had beeninvested. And 16
19 we wanted to know where the money was and how it was invested 17e Official Reporter
20 and who it was with. 18
21 He indicated that, either that day or close to 19
22 that day, that the monies had been invested in a reputable
23 securities firm and he called it American Holdings, | think 20
24 was the name. And he wouldn't give me the location, the 21
25 22

website. We went through a process of trying to get him to
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EXHIBIT 3 TO JUMPER TESTIMONY



Case 4:16-cv-02116-MWB Document 1-2 Filed 10/20/16 Page 1 of 65

~

Resolution of a Meeting of the Board of Directors of

Plan Sponsor Snou.) Shoe ?Q-C—mgj—c-ﬁe 5 LLO (the "Corporstion”)t

peld a 500 o plad Proet on_ Y4 7 37,20 67 at 5:3Wclock in thet P
(Mo. Day Yr.)

There were present: i

Pirett Aloir ? Q)f gnt P evtfer ée v(o( , who presided as Chairman of the meeting, andt - _
k) o L\ Al QA..(M JoX X . Who acted as Secretary of the meeting.t

It was stated that lhc purpos f the meeling was 10 constder and diseu M g,y_f tE?’: 9/
INeops Shae /e 7224' A LLC Rosion [Ton Zf»/(“ lan’™) ax d%) st Agreement containing thet

terros and cox_l_dxtions goveming the relationship between Merrill Lynch Bank & Trust Co., FSB ("MLBT-FSB") and the
Corporation with fcspect to the appointment by the.Corporation of MLBT-FSB as Trustee ofthe

Sen SAR. ) 3
= Plan ' ‘
and, if applicable. the termination of %ﬁ n (< d[ 41’””7//0« the

(“Current Trustee”) effective _D / |, 2007 ; and the appointraent, and terminstion if applicable,] was in order.
Following a discussion thereof, upon tmotion duly made, seconded and unanimously carricd, it was

Resolved that the attached Trust Agreement be adopted and that MLBT-FSB shall be appointed as Trustes of tlio Trust

established under said Plan and the Current Trustee, if any, which had been serving as Trustee of said Trust, is hereby . 3
relicved of such position effectiveas of 5 /| . 20Q7: and it way i

Resolved Further that the proper officers of the Corpozation are, and each of them js, hereby authorized and directed, in the
name of and on behalf of the Corporation, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement and to do alt other things, including
the execution of all other documents and the desigaation of other individuals to represent the Corporation in matters
pertaining to the Trust, which they deem necessary or appropriate to implement. the foregoing resolution, or such other
matters pertaining to the Trust.

There being no further business before the mecting, the:same was on motion duly made, seconded and carried, duly
-adjoumed.

.
Authorized @fficgr: . do _C‘_]‘QQ!&.—. i
Secretary: A j ' f/x«ﬂ ;

Nole; Ylﬁ:éolulwn. which you :{/y ust, is provided as a convenience 1o you as the Employer. If you prefer to use at
customized-resolution, pidase include original evidence of'adoption and appointment of MLBT-FSB, as Trustee.

A 7T EXHIBIT D _
Deponen JEﬂEE—e
2t
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EXHIBIT 4 TO JUMPER TESTIMONY



Case 4:16-cv-02116-MWB Document 1-2 Filed 10/20/16 Page 2 of 65

Defined Benefit Plan Trust /Tgref:mem entered into as of:

2|29, \200‘7 e ee e (ffective-Date) ,

among Metrill L].mch Bank & Trust Co,, FSB (*“MLBT-FSB"),

.D .o, g‘\h’“’\u REFAcT o XKlz S £1.C. (“Employer™) and the :
Plan Fiduciary, as named i the Specimen Signature Document, -

WHEREAS, the Employer maintains the éwdv\/ § (.1/01 REFLAC T KIES. :

Lo ZéntSroal Phls] Fpl ol Y Lol LadeEs a
defined benefit employee benefit pension plan (the “Plan™);

WHEREAS, the Plan Fiduciary (as indicated in the Specimen Signature document) is the Named
Investiment Fiduciary of the Plan;

WHEREAS, the Employer herewith desires to retain MLBT-FSB-as a non-discretionary directed Trustes
of the Plan (the “Trustee”) pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Trust Agreement;

WHEREAS, MLBT-FSB desires to perform such services pursuant to the terms and conditions specified : t
in this Agreement; Ty

NOW, THEREFORE, the Employer and the Trustee hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE X: STATUS OF TRUST, AND APFOINTMENT AND ACCEETANCE OF TRUSTEE j

1.01  Status of Trust. The Trust is intended to be a qualified trust under.Section 401(a) of the internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (the “Codc™), and cxempt from taxation
pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code,

1.02  Appointment-of Trustee. The Eraployer represents that all necessary action has been taken for
the appointment of the Trustee as trustee of the Trust and that the Trust Agreement constitutes a
legal, valid and binding obligation of the Employer.

1.03  Acceptance of Appointment. The Trustee accepts ifs appointment as a non-discretionary
dirgcted trustee of the Trust.

1.04  Effectiveness, This Trust Agreement shall not become effective until the executed and delivered:
by both the Employer und the Trustee.

..‘

.:.)"!:.'!Sl‘ia".l i AT vv;‘“'&sC. A b)]
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2.02

('{ { i

Defincd Berefh Piun banhutiona) Trist 03.39.07

tem “Named: Adxmms!rauve Fiduciary” reférs to elpexson(s) or entity named or prowded -for'xn
the Plan as mpmsxble for the administration and operatxon of the Plan, and the term “Néstied
Investment Fnduciary ‘refers to the person(s) or entity" pmvxdod Tor in the Plan as rcsponsxble for
the investment and management of Plan assots to the extent provided for in this Trust Agreement.
The Named Admmxstrauve Fiduciary and the Named lnvestmem deucmly may be the same-
pErEOI(8) of enlity. Tf auy such'person 3s-riot named or provided for in the Plan, or if so named or
provided for, is ot then serving, the Employea- shall.be the Named Administrative F‘ducnary or
the Named Investrent Fiduciary or both, asdhe case may be. The Named Administrative
Fiduciary'and. the ‘Named Investment deuc:ary are treated as named fiduciaries under thns Trust
Agreement (withm the meaning of Section 402(a): of the Employee Retirement Income Secunty
Aot of 19743 amended (“ERISA™). Neitherthe ’n'uswe nor Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Femigr@

Smith hmpmmdﬂmﬂmvmthaﬂamed ‘Administrative Fiduciary or the Named Investment

Fiduciary.
Identification:of: Nagwd.xmduciaries and Designees The Named Administrative E\duchry and

upon cach suchwn nonce as evidence ¢ }
until a written canceflation of the appointment, or.the written appointment of a successor, is.
reccived by the Trustee: from the Employer, iti€ Named Administrative deucmry or the Named
Investment Fiduciary, as the case may be.

ARTICLENIE: nncmvts ANDTRUST] *3 sf g

0
- UR
LRI

T, S S '_.QA.}.L

3.01

Recelpt by '!‘mstee. Thc 'h'ustee shall receive in cash or other assets all contributions paid or
dolivered to it which-are allocable under the Plan aud to the Trust and al} transfers paid or
delivered under thie Plan 16 the Trust from apredecessor trustee or another trust (including a trust
formmg part of another plan quahﬁcd under Secnon 401(a) of the Code); provided, however, thate

me’ wi;ét’h _ ramoums received by the
Trustee, and the ummg thereof, comply wnh the Plan and. applicabile law. In addition, without

10
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3.02

e 9
it (s

Definod Benelis Plaa tastinusiorsy Trusy 02.19.07

exercisipg any discretionary authority over the investments of the Plan or this Trust, the Trustee-

may establish certain assets or asset categories that may not be permissible for the Trustee to hold
in trust for all plans (or certain types of plans) with respect to which the Trustee. may be serving
as trustee. The Trustee hias the right to refuise to.accept such assets or asset categories into the
Trust Fund:and, upon providing the Namea. Investment Fiduciary reasonable advance written
notice, the Frustee may refuse to continue to hold-any such existing assets or asset categories in
the Trust Fund. Upon written request (which may be provided through electronic communication
inaccordance with Section 11.12 hereof) the Trustee shall provide to the Employer or Named
Investment - Fiduciary additional information concermning which assets or asset categories are not
capable of bemg held in this Trust Fund.

Trust Fund For purposes of this Trust Agrsement, the “Trust Fund” consists. ofall money and
other propesty received by the Trustee pursuent to Section 3.01 hereof, increased by any income
or gains on or increment in such assets and decreased by any investment loss or expense; benafit
or disbursement paid pursuant to this Trust Agreemem "The Trustee shall hold the Trust Fund,
without dastmcuon between pnnc:pal and-i -income, as a nondlscretionnry, d:rec!ed tmstee pursunnt

appmpnate

4.02

4.03

'I‘mstee upon dnrecnon ﬁ-om the ‘Ianwd Adiini
the Trustee shall be msmined to the:

entxtledto:paymcnts under the Plan or- xhem dreées.

Named Administrative Fiduciary’s D:rections. Directions [rom or on-bghalf. of the Named
Adminismative Fiduciary or its designee shall be communicated to the Trustee ot the Truswe's
designee only in a magner and in sccordance with procedures acceptable to the: Trustee. The
Trustee’s:designee shall not, however, be empowered to implement any- such ditections except in
sccordance with procedures acceptable to the Trustee. The Trustee shall-have rio liability for
following any such directions or failing toact in the absence of any such directions.

The Trustee shall have no.liability for the acts or omissions of any person making or faﬂmg to
make any dircction under the Plan or this Trust Agreement nor any duty or obligation to review
any such direction, act or omission.

Disputed Payments. If a dispute arises over the propriety of the Trustee making any payment
from the Trust Fund, the Trustee may withhold the payment until the dispute has been resolved
by & court of competent jurisdiction or settled by the parties to the dispute. The Trostce may
consult legal counsel and shall be fully protected. iracting upon the advice of counsel,

Trustee’: Compensatioit and Expenses. The Trustee’s compensation and expenses. payable
vnder this Tiust Agreement in accordance with the fee schedule agreed 1o in writing by the
Bmplo r shall be, to:the extent permmcd by. ERISA, expenses of the: P]nn and may ‘be puid I’mm
Plan dssets, ynless: paid by the Emplayer; as déscribed bélow.

(2)e The Employer may (i) pay the Trustee compensation for its services under this Trust
Agreement in accordance with the Trustee’s fee schedule in cffect and applicable at thee

i1
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time such compensation becomes payable. and (ii) pay or reimburse the Trustee for all
expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with or relating to the performance of its
duties under this Trust Agxeemem or its status as Trusiee, including reasonable attorneys’
fees.

(b)  If the Employer does not;  pay 1 the amounts referred to in Section 4.04(a) for a period of 75

days after the date of an invoice for the same, and the Employer or Named
Admihistrative Fiduciary has not objecwd to such compensation/expenses in writing
within such 75-day period, the Bmployer hereby authorizes and directs the Trustee to
charge against and withdraw from the Trust Fund all such compensation-and expenses
owing as provided below: Any-objection to-compensation-and expenses charged by the
Trustee, as applicable, shall be made by the Bmployer or the Named Admiuistrative
Fiduciary in writing and f pwsen the appropriate paity within 75 days after the date
of the invoice pmwde’d. 'c Employer Unresolved objections shall be settled, at the
Tiustee’s option, eithet by -of settlement between the Trustee and the
Employer or by a judicial ssttlement in en action instituted by the Trustee.

(c)  The:Employer authonzes !heTmstee and/or its affiliates to receive payments from

> .or,assesscd agamst the Trust dr assets, !hercof

payable from: an&an acpensa of the Plan. The Trustee: shall give notice to the.

ive Fidugi w'reccipt ofa demand for any-such taxes, charges or
aned Adm{mstraﬁ\ie Fiducmry shall have a reasonable opportunity under the

Ot ysuch taxes, charges or assessments prior to any paymeat by the

he: 'rustee shall not:be personally lmble for any such taxes, charges or assessments.

Expenses of Administxation. All reasonable expenses incnered by or on behalf of the Trust, or.
xncurred jcomxeetwn with, the adnnmsuwon of the Tmsx by the Employer, the Named

for expenses incurred.in the pafonnanoe of thexr yespective duues and any premxum payments to.
the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, a5 necessary, shall be paid or reimbursed: from the
Tmst l"unc_l to thc extent penmtted by BR!SA Such cxpenses, however, may | be pald from dxe

The . loyer may, howevu', make altemanv:z arrangements o pny such expenses or reimburse
3 ind; for any such payment, if the Employer so elects.

nuempt.;'Tnistmsseu shall not i any manner be liable for or. sub_;ect to debts. comracls,

12
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liabilities, engagement or torts of any Plan participant or beneficiary,.and benefits shall not be
considered an asset of any such person in the event of the person’s insolvency or banksuptcy.

Payment on Court Order. The Trustee is authorized to make any paynients directed by courts
order in any action in which the Trustee iz a party or pursuant to a “qualificd domestic relations
order”™ under Section 414(p) of the dde ‘or.Section 206(d) of ERISA; provided that the Trustee
shall not make suchspaymant if so-directed by the Employer or Named Administrative Fiduciary
and the Trustee is indemnified-and held harmless by the Employer in:a manner satisfactory to the
Trustee against all consequences.of such failure to pay. The Trustee isnt obligated to defend
actions in which the Trustes is maned but shall notify the Employer.or Named Administrative
Fiduciary of any-such action.and may-tender defense of-the-action tothe EmpIOyer sthe Nameds
Administrative Fiduciary or the p "t-or ‘beneficiary whose interest is affected. The Trustee
may in its discretion defecd any ch the Trustee is named: and any reasonable
expenses, mcludmg reasonsble at
paid or reimbursed in accordance:

5.02

the Tristee's nomza! e

fiderthe Plan in
amed lmmtment

shares of the ft
Fiduciary may in wming to t
find may be sponsored, manz
‘he Named Investment Ffduclary 5,

Investment Managers. The
Toore [nvestment Managers wh

shall be directed by the Bmp
in accordance with the proceds
shall notify the Trustee in writin
Investment Manager. ‘If tiiere
eﬁ‘ecuve under the: Plan atan :

] med Inmlmem deucaary. as the ease may be, to act
fe "ed to'in Section 5.04. The Named Inthmem Fiduciary
re:the ffectwenas of the appumtm at; mqva; of any

iciary métaﬁhsh separate funds for Eor( o by each such
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Direction of Voting and Other Rights. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan document to the
contrary:

(a) The voting, tender and other rights in securities or other assets held in the Trust shall be
exercised by the Trustee as directed by the Named Investnent Fiduciary or any
Investment Manager having control over the security or other assets involved, if any have
been appointed.

(b) If.a.person.other than the Named Investment Fiduciary respongible for a.voting.or.other.
' decision regarding an asset held in the Trust (i) does not communicate a decision on a
matter to the Trustes or the Trustee’s designee by the timé.prescribed by the Trustee or
the Trustee’s dmgnee for-that purpose or:(it) the Truste
Fiduciary either that it does not have precise mfnmmuon a
assetstinvolved or (i u) time copstraints make it unhkely
directton, can be received on a timely basis, then-thi
of the Named bwestment F’ducmy and, the Named lnv

y the securities or other
; Investraent Manager

©

@

directions of a type referred-to in Secnon 5. 03 from lhe Bmploy
Fiduciary, or an Investment Manager shall, in @ manner.and-in ac e
acceptable to the Trustee, be comimunicated to and implemented by, as:the case fiay b

Trustee, the Trustee’s designee or, with the Trustee’s conscnt, the b_roker/dealer dmgnated for the

designee or broker/dealer o tmplement the d:recnon aven thoug
than the Trustee, The Trustee (n) shall pave no liability forits'or
such directions or failing to act in the absence of any such directior
for the acts or omissions of any:person directing the investment: or rej
assets or making or fmlmg to make any direction referrad to in Sectiol
duty or obligation to review any such investment or other chreetxon or,-except
upon receipt of a proper diréction, to invest or otherwise manag_ ‘
subject to the control of any-such 1 person or to.exercise
Section 5.03.

. Cm_nmunicanon of Proxy atid Other Materials. The Emp!oyf" r] Administrative
Fiduciary shall establ acceptable to the Trusfee ft : ion to
eath person entitled to stee or its dcsignee aslpay siontcalled for

thereby or referred-to therein ofal 'proxy and other materials bcanng.on LY ecxslon.

14
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Common and Collective Trust Funds. Any person authorized to direct the investment of Tyust
assets may dfrect the Trustee to invest such assets in a common or collective trust (including any
such common or collective trust maintained by the Trustee or its affiliate) for the investmeént of
assets of qualified trusts under Section 401(a) of the Code, individual retirement accounts under
Section 408{a) of the Cade and plans of governmenta} units described in Section 818(g)(6) of thes
Code. The docmments goveming any such common or colleetive trust fund in which Trst assctss
have been invested, are hereby incorporated into this Trust Agreement by reference.

Dfsclosure to Merrill Lynch Affilfates and Portfo}io Companies. In order (o provide for thes
ongoing administration of the Trust, the Employer autborizes the Trustee 1o provide information
relating to-the Trust {0 any-of the-aftiliates-of the Trustes and their employees, fneluding -Merill
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated.

The Employer hereby directs the Trustee to withhold from any compatnry in which securities are
held nnder the Trust with respect to the Plan now or in the fisture (Which companies are: refem'ds
to herein-as “Portfolioc Companies™) any in formation requested by Portfolio Compsanies
(mcludmg but not limited. to:the name and address of the Trust and any securities positions held
in the Trust Fund with mpecr toithe Plan). -

%l\h\- -

6.0!

- 6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

y ?ded in: ERXSA. 'nn: Trustes shnll’haVe no: duty to

¢inides he' ¢ , whdmgheneﬁts to'Such pammpants gnd
beneﬁciaries and-defraying reasonable experises of: administering the Plan,

Status of Trustee. “The Trustee ackuowledges: its; status as a “fiduciary” of the Plan within: the
mganmg of ERISA, in its capacity as a non-dlscretlomry directed trustee.

Location of Indicia of Ownership. Except as permitted by ERISA, the Trustee shall not
maintain the indicia of ownesship of:any assets of the Trust outside the jurisdiction of the district
courtsof thc United States.

Trustee’s-Relfance:. The Trustee shall have no duty to inquire whether directions by the _
Empioyer, the Named Administrative Fiduciary, the Named Investment Fiduciaty or any other
person conform-to the Plan, and the Trustee shsll be fully protected in relying on any such -
direction communicated:in accordance with procedutes acceptable to the Trustee from any person
who the Tms(ee reasanably believes is a proper person to give t the direction. The Trustes:shall
Ab hzy to-any participant, any beneficiary or any other, person for peymenss- made any

rients, or.any discontinance of payments,on direction of the Named:
duqmry, tbe Named waestment Ftducinry or any designee of euther of:tli
. : ‘of di from.the Ni

\ ment. o.duty f
18 favlure 16 act if such instructions are nol l'orlhconung The Truslce shall have fio

15
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responsibility to determine whether the Trust Fund is sufficierit to meet the liabilities under the
Plan, and the Trustes shall not be liable for payments or Plan liabilities in excess of the Trust
Fund.

606 Indemnification.

(a) The Employer hereby indemnifies the Trustee agginst, and shall hold the Trustee
hanmless from, any and all loss, claims, liability, and expensc, including reasonable
attorneys’ foes, imposed upon the Trustee orincurred by the Trustee as a result of any
acts taken, or any failure to act, in-accordance with the directions from the Named
Administrative Fiduciary, Named Investment-F' iduciary; Investnient Manager-orany
other person specified in Article IV or V hereof, or any designee of any such person, or
by reason of the Trustee’s good fmth execution of its duties with respect 10 the Trust,
including, but niot imited to, its holding of assets of the Trust as provided for in Section

3.02, thé Employer’s obligations. in the foregoing regard to be satisfied promptly on
request by the Trustee, unless the loss, claii; Jiability or expense involved resulted from
the Trustee’s negligence, willful m:seonductm breach of this Trust Agreement.

The Trustee hercby mdemmﬁ_e_s the: Emplc gainst, and shall hold the Employer

yer or Mmed by the Employerasa mull of
‘uct or breach oftlus Trust Agreement.

.bilx'has, all ‘]xcable {53 enanification: gmmed hemtnder to the ’I‘rustec and
icable prozectiuns of nny naturéafforded to the Trustee

7.01 Nondlscretionmy Investmont Powers Solely at: the dxrecﬁon of the person anthonzed to dxrect
such action.as veferred to in Article V-hereof, but limitéd 16:those assats or categories of assets
acccptable fo the Tmsteo, the Trustee, or.the Trastee’s designee or a broker/dealer as referred to
in Section 5.04, is authorized and empowered:

(@)  To invest and reinvest the Trust Fund, together with the income therefrom, in common
stock, preferred stock, convertibls pmfen'edsmck, bonds, debentures, convertible
debentures and bonds, mortgages, notes, commercial paper and other evidences of
indebtedness (mcludmg those issired: by the Trustee), shares of mutual funds (wlnch
{unds may be sponsored, managed or offered by en aﬂ‘l:atc of the Trustee), pugeanteed
investment contracts, bank investment contracts, other securities, policies of life
insurance, annuity.contracts, opfions, options to buy-or sell securities or other assets, and
ol other property of any type (personal, real or mixed, and tangible or intangible);

(b) To.deposit or invest all or any part of the assets of the Trust.in savings.accounts or
certxf cates: ot‘ ‘deposit or other: deposus ina bank or: savmgsand loan‘association ar other

. on, mc]udmg the Trustee or.any ofits affiliates; provi led, tha
osits with-the. ’I‘nslce oran:affi hate. thy i:posrts bcar'a reasonable

interest rate;

16



mailto:certi��tes'.9f,�@��t
https://�(t�':Truatee_is:.a�ling:.on

Case 4:16-cv-02116-MWB Document 1-2 Filed 10/20/16 Page 10 of 65

(c)d

@

(o)

®

(®)
)
6
)

M

(i 0

Dafined Benafh Plas fasiinutlonn) Trufl 03.59.07

Tohold, manage, improve, repair and control all property, real orﬁétsona!, forming part
of the Trost Fund; to sell, convey, transfer, exchange, partition, Jease for sy term, evend
extending beyond the duration of this Trust, and étherwise dispose of the same from timed
1o time:d

To have, respecting securities, all the rights, powers and pnvﬂeges ofan owner, includingd
the. power to give proxies, pay assessments and other sums deemed: by thé Trusteed
necessary for the protection of the Trust Fund; to vote any corporate, stock enther ind
personr by proxy, withror withoutpower of substitution. for-any purpdse:-to-pasticipate-d
n ‘Yoting trusts poolmg agreemen:s, forec!osures. reorgamzanons, consohdauons,

or other property rccewcd thmugh the exercise of any of the. foragomg powers,d

Subject to Section 5.01 hereof, to-hold in ¢ash, without lisbility for: mtetest, such portiond
of the Trust Fund which it is: directed to so hold pending i xnvwlments, o paymem ofd
expenses, or the distribution. 39‘ benefits; d

To !ake such actxons as may be necwsaxy or d_esxrabh to protect thc Tmst fxom loss due

“protéct the Trust Fund, to: dirsét such agem or trustee, or to delcg?ate:sucﬁ._ ver to direet,

..-and to remove such agent or trustees -

, To settle, compromise or abandon:all clais and demands in-favor:oft oragamst the Trust

Fund,

- To.invest in any common or collective trust fund of the type referred to in Section 5.06

dhereof maintained by the Trustee or its affiliate;d

To exercise all of the fixthér rights, powers, options and pnvﬂeges granted, provided for,
or vested in trustees generily under the laws of the state in which the Trustee has its
pnnc:pal place of business, so that the powers conferred upon the Tms _‘herem shall notd
be in limitation of any autherity confesred by faw, but shall be in addmon thereto;d

Ta borrow money from any source and to execute promissory notes, mortgages.or other
obligations and to pledge or martgage any trust assets as security, subject to applicable
requirements of the Code and ERISA;d

To maintain accounts at, execute transactions through, and lend on an adequately secured
basis stocks, bonds or-other securities to, any brokcmge or other firm, includmg any firmd
which is an affilinte of the Trustee;d

To lénd, through a collective investment.fund, any securities held in such collechve
fnivesiment fund to brokers; dealer. or other borrowers-and to perinit, Such sécurit
tmnsﬂmed in the rame and cusstody and bé voted by: the borrower or others; and d

17
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(m)  Toinvest and reinvest the trust Fund, together with the income there from, in shares of ad
registered investment company, whether or not the Tyustee or any. of its affiliates is en
advisor to, or other service-provider to, such company.

7.02 Additional Powers of Trustee. To the extent necessary or which it deems appropriete to
implement its powers under Section 7,01 or otherwise to fulfill any of its duties.and
responsibilities as trustee of the Trust Fund, the Trustee shall have the following additional
powers and authonty '

(@) To register sccurities, or any other property, in its name or in the name of any nominee,
including the name of any. affiliate or the nominee name designated:by.any affiliate, withd
or without indication of the capacity in which property shall be: ‘held; or 10 hold sccuritiesd

in beaxer form and to: depmxt any securities or other property in a depository or clearing
corporation;

()  Todesignate and-engageithe services of, and to delegate powers and responsibilities to,
-such agents cnstodi,“ ‘ "'.,tatlves, adv:aexs, counsel and acc umams as the Tmstec

‘ d(d) - To make premmm payments.to the Pension-Benefit Goaranty. Corpomhon, as necessary} d
LS |

(c)d *Genemlly todo all o!her a¢ts which the Trustee deems netessery or appropriate for thed

‘protection of the Trust’ Fund.
ARTICUE VIH: nEcozgus, ACCOUNTINGS AN VALUATIONS

8.01 Records. The Trustee sha!l mmntmn%rcausc 10 be maintained accurate records and accounts of d
nll Tmst transactxons and assets. “The repords and accounts shall be avgilable at reasonable times

the Named lnvestment Fiducmxy ‘oFany person designated for the. purposc by cithier of them.

8.02 A/:counnngs thhm %0 days follow:ng the close of each fiscal year of the Plan or the effectived

; ”cconnung setting forth all transapuﬂns’ ingé the end of thed
¢ _t;ntmg The accounnngshall b1t ade & si:ng of the.

The Named Admlmstmnvemducmry may approve the accounting by wrilten approval deliveredd
10 the Trustee or by faillire to deliver written objections to the Trustee within 60 days after receipt

18
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of the accounting. Any such approval shall be binding on the Employer, the Named
Admibistrative Fiduciary, the Named Investment Fiduciary and, to the extent penmitted by
ERISA, all other persons. If the. Employer provides to the Trustes written notice of its objections
after the expiration of such 60-day. periad then'the Trustee shall use its reasonable best efforts to
cotrect stich inaccuracies or errors'but the Employer shall be fully- vesponsible for all costs
incurred in correcting such inaccuracies or ervors,

Valuation. The assets of the Trust shall be valued as of each valuation date under the Plan at fair
market value as determined by the Trustee based upon such sources.of information as it may
deem reliable, mcludmg, bm not limited to, stock market quotations, statistical evaluation
services,-newspapers.of’ gmeral circulation, financial publica advice-from-investment
counselors or brokerage firms;, or.any combination of sources. The reasonable costs incurred in
establishing values of the Trst'Furid shall be a charge against:the Trust! Fund unless paid or
disputed by the Employer in accordance with Section 4.04 hereof.

When the Trustee i¢. unable to atriye at a value based: upon uﬂ‘oxmanon from independent sources,

it may rely upon m(bnnauon-'from'the Bmployer, Named Admm e Fiduclary, Named
Investment Fiduciary, appral t other sources;.and shall not’ incur any liability for inaccurate

valuation bosed mgoodfanhupo snch mfonnauon s

' ARTICLE I¥: RESIGNATION AN

9.01

9.02

9.03

9;04_

9.05

Reslgnation. The Tmstee may U cast 60 .
Employer. . ch .;'_ wE

Removal. The Employer may: remove the T'mstee ‘upon at; teast 60?days written notice to the
Trustee, ¢

Appointmgn; 9!‘=;x'*§g¢gg.s"s,6 ‘ Upo

trustee by the eﬂ‘ecuvo dateé of the resignation or removal the Tmstee may appomt a successor
trustee.

Subject to Sections 9.04 and 9. 05, hereof, pmmptly aﬁer receipt by tha Tmstec of notice of the
effectiveness of the appomtment f the the Tr

successor trustee such recor
properly administer the'
amounis as-the Tmstegf

Employer or paid from fhe Trust Fund pnor 10 the dehvery.

Settlement of Account. Upon rwgnanon or removal of the Trustee. zhe Tmstee shall have the
whxch sot!lezmm shall be r

settlement between'th
arbitration in accordg"

Expenses angd: Cp ” &0 1
the Trustee is provided; surance"bythe Employer sahsfactory to'rhe Tmstec that all fees and

19
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expenses reasonably anticipated will be paid int acecordance with Section 4,04, or that such feesi
and expenses will otherwise be paid to the Trustee by the Employer, as agreed by the parties.

Terminatlon of Responsibility and Liability. Upon settlement of the account and transfer of
the Trust Fund to the successor trustee, all rights and privileges under this Trust Agreement shall
vest in the successor trustee-and all responsibility and liability of the Trustee with respect to the
Trust and assets thereof shall, except as otherwise required by ERISA, terminate subject only to
the requirement that the Trustee cxecute all necessary documents to transfer the Trust assets to
the successor trustee.

‘mﬂcwvmmm‘mnmmmw%-

10,01

10.02

Amendment. The' Employer reserves the right to amend this Trust Agreement, provided that 10
amendment of this Trust Agrectuent or the Plan shall be effective which would (a) cause any
assets of the Trust Fund to be used for, or diverted %o, purposes other than the exclusive benefit of
Plan participants or their beneficiaries other than an. &mendment permissible under the Code and
ERISA, or (b) aﬁ'ect the rights, dufiies, zespcnsﬂ:ﬂi _ obhgations or liabilities of the 'Imslee
without the Trustee’s.written consent, The: Empl 1t
requested by the Trustee bo reflect changes in law Which counsel for the Trustee advises the
Trustes require such changes. Amendments to the 1 ement-or cestified copics-of the
amendments shall'be delivered to the Trustee prorqp after adopnon, and if practicable under;
the circumstarices; any. proposed amendment tothe T: g’reemnm under: consxderauon by thel
Employer shall be communi the T '
thereon in due coursé before the Employet acts. onihe proposcdfaxnendmcnt.

notice to the Tmsteo. Upon such termination nnd ject Section 1.01 hereof, the Trust: hmdl
shall be distributed as:directed by the Named Admnmstrauve mucmy

In the case of termination of the: Plan, any tesaduallj ; | st Fund ‘may be d istn'buted 10i
the: Em;;loyer at the.direction of the named A nistra ciary:{or a trustee appointed by
the pension BeneﬁrGuamnty Corporation), provi' ’ Named Administrative Fiduciary
{or a trustee appointed’by the pension Benefit Guaian' orporation) determiries, represents and
warrants that all obligations of the Trust Fund: andpal ities urider the Plan to participants-andi
their beneficiaries haye been satisfied an such dlstﬁbutxon does niot contravene any applicable
provisians of law. T the.event that the Plan is temnnated in whole or in part by the Employer
pursuant.lo the provisions of Section 4041 of ER!SA. or by:the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation pursnant to:the- pmwsxons .of Section 1}04 f ER!SA, the Trustee, reserving such
sums as the Trustee shall deem: ‘necessacy in scltlm'g_ istee"s accounts and discharging thei
obligations of the Trust Fund for which the Trust ighle, shall apply or distribute the
Trust Fund in 2¢cordance with:the written directio ¢ Named Administrative fiduciary or
any trustee appointed by the Pension Bénefit Guaranly orporat:on When the Trust Fund hasi
béen so applied or distributed, the Trustee shail bejrel¢ased and dischiarged from all furthér
accountability or liability. respecting the Trust Funﬂand shallinot be responsible in any way to
any person for thé: fisither disposition of the Trust Fing: No hqmdahon of'the assets of the Trusti
Fund sball be made by the Trustee until ’lhe T mste; ' by thc Named

in wrmng that. the P!fcable plnn e
oblamed The.’ 'l‘ hall‘be emnlg

dlsm’buuon dnrected is in. acc:ordance Qith Iaw angd:will not sub_;ect ﬁié 'Tmst Fund or: thc Tmstec
to linbility.
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11.01

11.62

11.03

11.04

11.05

11.06

11.07

Exclusive Benefit Ru!e Excep: as prov:ded in Section 11.02, or as otherwise penmitied or
required by ERISA or the Code, 1o asset of the Trust shall be used for, or diverted to, purposes
other than the exclusive benefit of Plan participants or their beneficiaries or for the reasonable
expenses of administering the Plan and Trust until all liabilities for benefits due Plan participants
or their beneficiaries have been satisfied.

Refunds to Employer. The Trustee shall, upon the written direction of the Named
Administrative Fiduciary which shall include a centification that such action is proper under the
Plan, ERISA and the Code specifying:any relevant sections thereof, retumn to thc Employe: any
amount referied to ia Section 403(0)(2) of ERISA.

Authorized Actlon. Any action to be taken under this Trust Agreement by an Employcr or other
person:which is: (a) a corparation, shall be taken by the board of directors of the corparation or
any personor pérsons.duly empowered by the board of directors to take the action involved, (b)a
paitnership, shall be taken by an.authorized general pariner of the partnership, or (c) a sole
mpnetoxshlp. shall-be taken by the sole proprietor.

Qualified. Plan Reprwentntion. By entering into the Trust Agreement, the Employer represents
i erlying Plan jg.a qunhf fed:plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue'€ode.
. ,,Vyerfu,nher represénts that prior to:the execirtion of this Trust Agreemem byboth. -
garties it delivered to the Trustee the text of the Plan, as in effect as of the date of this Trust
Agreemenit; and: all:other- docunien gbvemmg the: Plan thnt are relevant to xhe 'I‘rustea *siduties.
The:Einployer. lwer_to th 7

,,,,,

Conﬂict with Plan. The. nghts duues, t&sponstblhtm. obligations and linbilities of the Trusteel
are as set forth-in this Trust Agreement, and no provision of the Plan or any other document. shall
be deemod to affect such rights, duties, respons:hhnes. obligations and Jiabilities. If théreisa
conflict between provisions of the Plan, any other document and this Trust Agreement with
respect to any subject involving the Trustee, including but not limited to the responsibility,
authority or powers of the Trustee, the provisions of this Trust Agreement shall be controlling.

Failureto Maintain Qualification. If the Trust fhils to qualify as a qualified trust under Section
401(a) of the Code,:or loses its:status as sucha quai:ﬁed trust, the Employer shall immediately so
notify the Trustee, and the Trustee shall, without further notice or direction, remove the Trust
assets from any common or collective trust fund for investments by qualified trusts.

Governing Law and Construction. This Trust Agreement and the Trust shall be consuued
adminisiered and govemed under ERISA and othm'pcmncnt federal law, and to the extent:that
federaldaw is: mapphcable. urider the Jaws.of thesiate in which the Trustee bas its pnncxpal place
oﬁbtisx’ﬂess; if ﬁr‘iy»proviston:of mst Agxcement is: suscepnble to more:than oné
interpretation, 4 pre iven is that:y whn.h i consistent with the Trust being a:
quahﬁed it he Code. Ifuny provision of this Trust Agmement;ls held

. by'a‘court of comnpetent:jurisdiction tobe. invalidor unenforceable, the remalning provisions shall

continue to be fally-effective to the cxtent possible under the circumstances. -

2t
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11.08

11.09

11,10

11.11

11.12

-,
-
-
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Successors and Assigns. This Trust Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the pasties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Gender. As used in this Trust Agreement, the masculine gender shall include the feminine and
the neuter genders and the singular shall include the plurat and the plural the singular as the
context requires.

Hesdings. Headings and subheadihgs in this Trust Agreement are for convenience of reference
only and are.not to.be.considered in the.construction of the provisions of the Trust Agrecmant.

Counterparts. This Trust Agreement may. be. executcd in several counterparts, each of which
shall be desmed an original, and these-couriterparts chall constitute one and the same instrument
which may be sufficiently cvxdenccd by any one counterpart.

Notice, Any written notice required by.1 this Trust Agreement shall be deemed given on the date
personally delivered to an authomed?epmmtatwe of the Trustee or the Employer, Named
Administrative: Fiduclary, or Named ‘Fiduciary (or any other party to' whom: iritten

* notice is required) or deposited i ;States mail, return receipt requested, addressed to

the Trustee or the Employer. the ame& G @pxstmuva Fiduciary, or Named: lnveslment

Fiduciary (or any other party i otice is required) at the most recent; addms
provided by the Trustes and the the other. In addition, any writlen:nofice required
by this Tyust Agreemcnt may- Hiwoughre-mail or other electronic means that are
readily convertible into legible andmdab‘!, papu copy. gg

g

11,13 Arbitration.

g

By signing. this Trust Agreemcnt, xnc!ud!ng this arbitration clause, the Dmployer and the
Tristee agree as follows:

The Employer and the Trustee are;gwi’ng np the: ri,,ht to sue oach other in court, including
the right to a trial by jury, except as providéd by the rules of the arbitration forum in whichg
a claim is filed.

Arbitration-awards are generally fiﬁtl-and binding; a party’s ability to have a court reverseg

‘or modify an arbitration award Is very limited.g

The ability of the Employer and the: Trustee to obtain documents, witness statements and
other discovery Is generally more: limited in arbitration than in court procecdings.g

The arbitrators do not have to explain the reason(s) for their award.g

The panel of arbitrators will typically include a minority of arbitrators whoe were or ave
afiiliated with the securities- indnstry.

The rules of some arbitration forums mgy fmpose time limits for bringing a claim in
arbitration. Insome eases, a clmm tha iéi_melignble for arbitration may be: brought in court.g

The rules of the arblfraﬁoh;foﬁ’gﬁr ilely the clgim is filed, and any amendments thereto,
shall.be ineorporated into this. agraemeat.

22
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o Nothing herein shali constitute a waiver of the right to seek a judicial forum where such a
wajver would be vold under the Employee Retirement facome Security Act of 1974, as
amended.

The undersigned Employer agrees on behalf of the Plan that all controversies which may arise
between the Employer and the Trustee in connection with this Trust Agreement or any document
or-agreement incorporated by reference therein, including but not Hmited to those involvlng any
transaction releted ta the Plan or the Plan accounts, or the coustructlon, pert‘ormance, oy hreach of
this-or any other-agreement-between the Employer and.the Trusteessvhether entered-into-prior-to,
on, or snbsequent to the date hereof, 'shiill%be determined by arbitration.

Any arbitration ander this Trust Agreement shail be conducted only before the New York Stock
Exchange, Inc. (“NYSE"), an. arbm-ation facllity provided by any other exchange of which Merrill
Lynch, Plerce, Fenner & Smith. Ing jorsted is a member, or the National Association of Securitieso
Dealers, Inc. (“NASD™), and In aceordaiice with Its rules then In force.

The ‘Employer may clectin the first instnnce whether arbitration shallde conducted before the
NYSE, aviother exchange gf which Merrfil Lynch, Plerce, Fenner & Smith is a member, or the
NAéD Ifthe Employer fails to make such electlon, by registered letter or telegram addressed to:

. Merrill Lynch Bank & Trust Co., FSB:
Tastit tiona] Trust. Administratipn

be "“‘retho ‘expivation of five.(5). days*aner receipt of a written request from the Trustee to makeo

' 'l‘eetion, then the 'I'rus(ee may:; gke snch election. Judgment upen the award:of arbitrators
‘may be ¢entered in any court, state or Tederal, having jurisdiction. No person: slmllé ringm putative
oreertified class action to arbitratron, tior'Seck to énfdree any pre-dispute arbitration. agreement
agninst apy person who has fnitjated in coirt a putative class action, or whods-a memberof a
putnative class who has not opted out of the class with respect to any clafms encompassed by the
pufative class action until:

(1).the class certification is denfed;
@y the class is decertified; or
(ili) the person is excluded from the class by the court.

Such forbearance to enforce an agrecment to arbitrate shall not constitute a waiver of any rights
under this Trost Agreement except to the extent stated herein.

Goremtsscpsammose s manan
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BY SIGNING THIS TRUST AGREEMENT. THE UNDERSIGNED EMPLOYER AND
JRUSTEE ACKNOWLEDGE THAT, (1) IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 11.13 ABOVEN
THE EMPLOYER AND TRUSTEE ARE AGREEING IN ADVANCE TO ARBITRATE ANYN
CONTROVERSIES WHICH MAY ARISE AND (2) RECEIPT OF A COPY OF THIS TRUSTN
AGREEMENT.N

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer and the Trustec have executed this Trust Agreeraent cach by
action of d duly authorized person,

* Employer

Print: Namelr:tle ).0-VAY
Date: ‘ ) f V’IN

-iMertill Lynch Banlk & Trust: Co. FSB

By (autbonzed signature); __

‘.,Pnnt Namefl' itle:

- Daite:
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: i
% I
NAMED FIDUGIARIES AND AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE(S) INFORMATION

peanname 2 Tres? &_ﬁrzb thee Spops Shoe Ketsstories Fn oy,
ACCOUNT NumBER(s) _{REDACTED 102 [REDACTED [¢§

Named Administrative Fiduciaries (Fiduciaries responsible for the admiuistration and opcrﬁtion of the plan):
IR Haz.e\ Renau.tl w Ciu:l: P;&._xi-ﬂb},q. i

Signaflae “Tige

,wg,{” Pa [REDACTED -

Home Address (Strect, City, State, Zp codo) Sacial Sceurity @ Sl
Signatory Name (Pleass Type) Signature Title "
Hlomo Addeess (Swreet, Clty, State, Zip codc) Social Sccurly 7

3. _ - :
Signatory Nome (Plesse Type) Signature _ Title
Tome Address (Sivect, iy, S, Zip c0d9) Socil Secoriy 7
4. - ;
Signntory Name (Pleasa Typa) Signature Title
Home Address (Stree, Oy, SBis, Zip code) ) 3 Socki Seconiy B 5

7int-and munagement of plan assets):
V.8 Finarce

Title
{REDACTED |
Social Becority # :
2.
Signalery Name (Please Type) Signature Title
Fome Address (Strest, City, Siato, Zip €0do) Sockal Seeurity 5
Signatory Name (Please Type)—— Signature Tide :
Toms Address (Stre<t, City, Stals, Zip 6od) Social Seourity ¥
4 _
Signatory Name (Plcase Type) Signatore Title
Homg Address (Strees, City, State, Zip cods) Sockal Sceurity # -
I.sjnéﬂ § ng e amtheN T ?N—s\ %:T( c)of Dhad Dhee, (Plan Spousor-the N
“Company™)- fiid do hhed 1 fythal the lnd!vidunlsnamed above were dily aufhotined by the Company, a5 the Named Administrative  *e— -
Fiduciaries adgiitho Nfmegrihasira Puciarics, respectively, of (The Plan). . =
Signaturaz/ {4 L pae y | 4 ‘Di :
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~

Bankof America 5"
Mervill Bymeh . .. . . . . L

NAMED FIDUCIARIES AND AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE(S) INFORMAYION i
PLAN NAME SnowyShoe Refriretrics Bosinn £ <€
sccoosrvurnercs. . [N f‘

> )

iduciavieyPesponsible for h y i :
A o1

Scml:Semmyﬂ

Signatory Nome (Please Type) Signsture Tiilo

§

Flome Address (Sunet, Clty, State, Zip code) Social Secariy #

Signatory Name ( Please Type) Signature Title P

Fome Addess (Svaer, Civy, Sinie, 21p <009 Sy ' '

4. : g

Signstory Nome (Please Tyjic) Signature Tide

Hlome Addres (Street, Clty, State, Zip code) Sociab Secanty 8

.. ....
esatet myoupetsLsSen pue o

PR,

P

Signetory Nume (Pleast Type) Signature This i

H
.
.
]
'
4
3
v
" e
’
-
.l
:
:

Homo Address {Sireet, Cily. Staic. ZIp codc) Sotial Sceority #

3.
Signatory Name {Please Type) Signaure Tile

Home Address (Sticet, City, Stote, Zip code) Social Secorlty #

4.
Sigaatory Name (Please Type) Signature Title

Rome Address (Street, City, State, ZIp code) Sockal Securiy #
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.

rdeba £ JmM?‘-’V amine Y oR, ?‘k'-?:*&\\%?‘ém_ Sonsw Khse (Plan Sponsor -the

“Company™} and do hetcby cestify that the indlviduals named above wene duly authnrized by the Company, as the Named Advalnistative

ciais. cpsaivelnor Wl SAoe fensitt, Fantor ooy Golaces

Signatore: D‘“"-J——la . —-&-“———‘1‘ k2
Print or TP . S : JMH-FQV‘
Please forward document 02 For overnight delivery, the sddress i
Bank uf Amgrica. NA. (MLTO) Bank of Americe. N.A. (MLTC)
Eniployee Benefit Trust Opertions Ewployes Benefit Trusy Opertions
P.0O. Box 1522 1300 Meniil) Lyncht Drive, Moi) Codes N32-130-03-37
Pennington, NJ 08534-1522 Penntnglon, Now Sersey 08534
- " .l. .i 4 . ¢ D R
*
* * LIRS ' : » - R ~? .:.' A Y d : ia ‘e o
. A3

esate

O R
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® ’\.}- . . .

Bank of America & |
Merrill Lynch K
NAMED FIDUCIARIES AND AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE(S) INFORMATION :

PLAN NAME Sﬂou) ‘2 Lg? Btfl‘raoi'bﬁfj 4/%,,5,4,” ID}g_ fof H"W %‘ E..'}’Mw
ACCOUNT NUMBER{S) erDACTED I@g ]REDACTED bs

Nnmed Administrutive Fiducjarfes (Fliduciarics rc.sponsxblc for the ad //ﬁstmmm antl operation of the plan):
P

 Warlc & Saedy Se, 7 Ok

E— . ;e,,».- e
win: Adudress [Street, City, State, Zip eodke) Soctal Security -

2

Signotory Nams: (Plcase Type) Signmure Tile
Home Arkiress (Suwet, Cliy, Stae, Zip cade) Social Sceuriiy &

3- - - ;
Signutory Namw (Please Type) Siguature Title
House Address (Stee, Clry. State, Zip code) T Sorlal Seeartyd”

4 . L x
Signatury Naine (Please Type) Shgnnture Title

i

Hontc Address (Sticot. Clty. State, 2ip coda) - Sacial Scewsily # :

fid management of plats assets).

Vica President

Toke .
IREDACTED | o
dattey . Sociol Secoly 8 y
2,
Sign:atory Name (Please Type) Signaturne Tike
Honie Addiess tSuect, City. Siane, Zip cnie) . . Sociaf Sceericy#

3. NI | . '
Signatary Nanic (Phase Type) Signatore Title :
Hume Atdress (Streel, City, State. Zip code) Sncial Security £ :
Signatnry Nomu (Please Type) Signatre Tule :

. / e :
Rame Adstress ¢ Suwr, City, Stawe, Zip codc) Soclal Sceurity #

' A 77 EXHIBIT
An Jm/’eﬂ?i

Deponen
Date&/‘z { ptr_-——
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N 24
owie_B[22]1 4
/ |

NS Jumger V7.
Please forward docuiinm to: For overtight delivery, tlus aldesss is:
Brutk af Awmerien, N.A, (MLTC) Bank of Ameden, N.A. (MLTC)
Eniployee Benelit Truss Operstions Employee Bencliv Teust Qpeeations
1.0 Boy 1523 1300 Menill Lyuch Drive, Mail Code: N52.130.03.27
Panntngion. N) OBSY1. 1522 Peaningtan, New Jersey 08524

aetetote imeaitiy we
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Sep 12 2014 14:21'88 19818813815 -> Herrill Lynch Page BB1
Merrifl Lynch
Weaith Management?
Bank of Amerita Corporation
FACSIMILE COVER SHEET
TO: Karen
PHONE:

FAX: 16097510944

FROM: Morrill Lynch

SENDER: G Todd

DATE: FriSep 12 14:20:38 CDT 2014
PHONE: (801) 756-2000

FAX: 19018813815

No. of Paga(s) (including this page): 2
Subject: Snow Shoe Ref Signer Form

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The tnformation confained In thia FAX messaga s intendad only for the confidenilal uso of the designated reciplent nemed
ehova. This message may contsin contraciusl and proprietery information and a6 such Is privieged and confidential, if the reader of this message fsnot
the intended rediplent or an agent responsible for delivering it io the intendad reciplent, you ara hereby nofiflad tiat you hove recelved this document in
error, end thal any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message Is siriclly prohibited. if you have received this communicafion In emor,
please nolifyus immedlataly by talephono end retum the message to us by mell,

f L P nner & rated Investment producis .
Are Not FDIC Insured AroNot Bank Guaranteed | Moy Lose Valuo |

® 2043 Bank of America Corporation. All rights reserved,

Dpt-out instructions

This fax may contain promotional materials from Bank of America or ono of our affiiiate companies. You may choose not
10 recelve future faxes that contain promotional materials by: Faxing: 1.804.627.7042 or Calling: 1-888-344-5000 or by
mail to Bank of America CDM VA2-100-04-32 PO Box 27026 Richmond VA 23286-9085.

Imporiant: You must inform the bank of the specific fax number(s) to which the fax opt-out request will apply.
As required by Federal law we will honor your opt-out request within 30 days.
Bank of America Corporation. All rights reserved.

Plaase nota: You may still continue to receive fax communications from your assigned account reprosentative, such as
your Financial Advisor to address your financial needs.

Comments:

This message, and any attachments, is for the intended ,recipienc(s) only, may contain
information that is privileged, confidential and/or proprietary and subject to
important terms and conditions available at
http://www.bankofamerice.com/emaildisclaimer. If you are not the intended
recipient, please delete this message.
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Sep 12 2814 14:21:16 1981BB13B15 -> Merrill Lv_:;nc}l Page 882

Bankof America 29
Merrill Lynch

Plan Sponsars must provide to Bank of America Merrilt Lynch the names of tha curront Named Administrative Fiduclaries and
Named Investment Fiduciaries of the Plan (collectivaly, the “Namod Fiduclaries) and any othor non-flduciary individuafs who
aro authorlxed to sign for and initlate plan changos or iransactions {for oxample, withdrawals, Ihvostment changes and plan
amendments) on behalf of the Named Fidugiaries. Spccumon signatures are also requirad. The same Individuai(s) can be
designated as a Named Adminlatrative Fiduciary and a Namad Invostment Fiduciary.

Any changes to the persons designated must be immaediatoly provided to Bank of America NMerrilt Lynch on a new Authorized
Signer Doslignation/Change Form.

Plan Name: Sfow S )\pg g;g-“én;/tg Eﬂ;zov\ /0-’1 ("the Plan”) Plan Number: [ﬁEDACTED _‘joi

L arli & L/;‘ccaéf < S = . duly authorized and acling on behalf of the Plan Sponsor cf fho Plan, herebyd
centify that (he undersigned pessons have been appointad by the Pien Sponsor as tho Named Administrative Fiduciaries andlor
Named Inveaiment Fiduclaries of tho Plan, or, 88 noled. ara suthorized in full compliance with the Plan’'s documonts and Trust to
provide direclions on bohalf of the Namead Administrative Fiduciaries andfor Named (nvestment Figuctarles of the Plan.

! further acknowlecdge that this Auliorized Signer form contains the names and signalures of all individuals who will be providing
directions and raquests to Bank of Amigrica Morrill Lyach with raspect ta the Plan and that directions or requests from any Individurl
whose name is not included on this cerlfication will nol be actoptad.

Slgnature'WV % WAA Dale: g ﬁ7/}‘7 AT
Pant Name and Title: QZ@L & Joaihy S0 Bne ué;r-

Nots:  Autharized Signers sre su\ijcct to varification of idanlly to 'comp!y with the requnomem.: of the USA PATRIOT Act. 1§ nacessary, addillonal
lnformauon augh ps Dele of Birth o( Sccml Secxmly Numbor may be raquesiad 1o commplels idontity vcrtﬁcanon

=

of the P!aﬂ) and Namcd Ivesiment Flduclanes (fduclarlas rcsponalble for xha dXscrernary avthority and conirol af me lnveslment and
management of Plan agsets) (Any indlvidual can serve in both ¢apscities):

1&4{_5&2‘2&&‘_& " Prrselor FU o] p&%
Print Nama {East / Fies1 # M.1.) Tills Slgefiture Spacimen
Sizez o £ dog, P/‘t‘— X Namod Adminisirativo Fiduclary

Residontinl Addresy R O Named Inveswent Fiduciaty

i
2. U DEFRABERT L < . MZ;Z%_
¥rini Nama {Tast / First /M, Tille $lgnature Specimon
I, <6 s, 28 59 Navad Adinisratvs Fidueliy

Realdentisl Address {J Hamod Invesiment Fiduclatyd

s Sumrer/ o /5 VICE PRES IDEMT
i T

Print Neme (Ladl / First # MJLY
I -

P 3 puli24:43

{
37 Slgnpahus Sp

Name Inistralive Flduclary
Nomed (avestment Fiduclary

4.
Print Name (Last / First 7 M.L) e Signalure Specimen
> 5 : _ ) Named Administrativo Flduclary
Residenlinl Address Cl Named thvesimant Fiduciaty

page 2 of 2
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Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC

895 Clarence Road
Clarence, PA, 16829

Phone: 814-387-6811 - Toll Free: 800-944-3748
Customer Service Fax: 814-387-6209 . Accounting Fax: 814-387-4698

March 12, 2015

* Ms. Amina M. Williams

Trust Officer

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
1300 Merrill Lynch Drive

Mail Code NJ2-140-03-65
Pennington, NJ 08534

Re: Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Pension Plan For Hourly Employees

Ms. Willlams:

We are purchasing a $3,000,000 senlor promissory note Issued by American Investments Fund i, LLC.
This promissory note will have a fixed rate coupon of 8.00% with a 10-year maturity with quarterly
payments of principal and interest.

Amerlcan [nvestments Fund I, LLC ("AIF") is a Delaware fimited liabliity company that owns 100% of
American Tubing Arkansas, LLC {“ATA"}. ATA recently acquired the assets of American Tubing, Inc., a
subsidiary of Natlonal Tube Holding Company based out of Birmingham, Alabama. ATA manufactures
and fabricates aluminum and copper tubing products for the split-type residential air conditloning

Industry.

This private debt investment conforms to the company’s Plan Document and meets the company’s
investment policy guldelines. We have performed extensive due diligence on thls investment Including,
but not limited to, analyzing the historical audited financlal statements, pro formas, visiting the facilitles,
meeting the management team members, legal counsel and auditors. Further we have conducted
meeting with the company’s largest customer and reviewing its facifities and interviewing team
members, reviewing environmental Issues such as hiring consultants to perform Phase 1 and Phase Il
environmental studles, having appraisals done of the facilities, real estate and equipment, and
performing other actlivities.,

AIF will provide Bank of America/Merrlll tynch (“BofA”) with confirmation that the Plan has an
investment in AlF as evidence by a copy of the promlssory note. AlF will also provide B of A with
quarterly pricing for the promissory note coupled with quarterly financial statements that will provide
an indication of valuatlon for the promissory note. We understand that the timing of the ¢ s
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monthiy statement at quarter end will be dependent on the receipt of the quarterly statement from AlIF.
In addition, the asset will not be held in Custody by Bank of America, N.A., and will therafore not be
audited, examined, or otherwise verifled by BANA. AlF Is the Custodlan of this asset and Is responsible
for the safekeepling.

We authorize you to establish an “Alternative Investients” account to reflect the American Investments
Fund; | LLE promissory note and to charge the $300.00 account set up fee as well as the $300.00 annual
update fee.

QOn March 186, 2015 please wire $3,000,000.00 from the Alternative Investment account to the following
Instructions:

»

Wire to: First Tennessee Bank
‘ Memphis, TN

Routing Number: [REDACTED]

For Credit to; First Capital Bank

AccountMumber:  [REDACTED ]

Final Gredit ta:

American Investments Fund), LLC
5101 Wheelis Dtive, Sulte '260
Memphis, TN 38117

Account Number:  [REDACTED |

Thank you for your asslstance in this matter.

Vice President
Snow Shoe Refractorles

’
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s 3, Snow Shoe Refractories, 1.1.C
% ﬁ}*‘ 895 Clarence Road

?E@%%@g@g@gg&, Clarence, PA 16829
%%w,ﬂ"ﬁ Phone: 814-387-6811 - Toll Free: 800-944-3748

ww rebicks.com Custorner Service Fax: 814-387-6209 - Accounting Fax: 814-387-4698

November 20, 2015

Bank of America, N.A.

oAmina Williams, Trust Gfficero
1400 Merrill Lynch Driveo
Mailcode NJ2-140-03-650
Pennington, NJ 085340

Re: Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Pension Plan for Hourly Employeeso

Dear Ms. Williams:o

Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC (the “Company”), as sponsor of the above-referenced plan (the “Plan”), haso
decided to remove $2,000,000.00 (the “Transferred Assets”) from the assets of the trust currently beingo
held by Bank of America, N.A. ("BANA"), as the directed trustee of the Plan pursuant to a trusto
Agreement between BANA and Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC (the “Trust Agreement”) and transfer theo
Transferred Assets to a separate trust. John S. Jumper bas been appointed as the successor trustee ando
the named fiduciary with responsibility for the Transferred Assets and the separate trust, ando
Metropolitan Bank has been designated as custodian of the Transferred Assets. A true and correct copyo
of the duly enacted resolutions, certified by Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Secretary, taking ando
authorizing these actions is attached hereto, atong with a copy of the trust Instrument that will governo

the Transferred Assets.o

Accordingly, Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC directed BANA to transfer the Transferred Assets too
Metropolitan Bank on November 20, 2015, according to the following wiring instructions.o

Wiring instructions:

Receiving Bank: The Metropolitan Bank
201 Northlake Avenue, Suite 109
Ridgeland, MS 39157

Account Name: American Investment Fund Il LLC
5103 Wheelis Drive, Suite 200
Memphis, TN 38117

Account # 'QFDA\, i "—D i
Routing# {RED:&C TED |
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Snow Shae Refractories, LLC desires that BANA continue as the directed trustee of the remaining Plan
assets following transfer of the Transferred Assets according to the terms of the Trust Agreement,

Name of Plan Record Keeper will provide recordkeeping services for the Transferred Assets. Please send
duplicate copies of all trust reports and brokerage statements to the following:

CONRAD SIEGEL ACTUARIES
ATTN: ABIGAIL FORTINO
501 CORPORATE CIRCLE
P.O. BOX 5500
HARRISBURG, PA 17110

Snow Shoe Refractorles, LLC hereby acknowledges and agrees as folfows:

ee Any information provided by Bank of America, N.A. (BANA) or Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &e
Smith Incorporated (“MLPF&S”) regarding the Plan assets refiect only the Plan assets held bye
BANA and will not include any information regarding the Transferred Assets.e

oe Neither. BANA, MLPF&S, nor any other Merrill:Lynch entity sheall be responsible or {iable fore
reporting'-. . i matlon with respect to. Plan-assets not held:by:BANA, including withoute
hmitat:on, the Transferred Assets, Including wlthout limitation annual reporting on IRS Forme -
550001 dlstributlon reporting on IRS Form- 1099R e

Snow Shoe Refractoﬂes, tLC hereby represents, warrants, and covenants as follows:

e JohnS. Jumper has.been duly-appointed by Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC as the successor trustee
with respect-tothe Transferred Assets and has acknowledged and accepted such appointment
in writing and executed a trust Instrument governing the Transferred assets, and a true and
correct copies of the acknowledgement and trust instrument are attached;

ee Metropolitan Bank has been duly appointed by Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC as the custodian
with respect to the Transferred Assets and Metropolitan Bank has acknowledged and acceptede
such appointment in writing, a true and correct copy of which is enclosed.e

s Upon transfer to Metropalitan Bank, BANA will not be responsible or liable for the Transferrede
Assets, including without limitation responsibility for processing distributions with respect to thee

Transferred Assets.e

The undersigned represents, warrants, and covenants that the information contained herein is true and
complete to the best of his knowledge, information, and belief, and that the directions to BANA given
herein have been duly authorized by Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC.
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Enclosures: Snow Shoe Refractorles, LLC
Fiduciary Acknowledgement
Trust Instrument
Custodial Acknowledgement
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Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC
@{% ¥ &% B 895 Clarence Road

FlRERRICKS Clarence, PA 16829°
%\W /4 Phone: 814-387-6811 - Toll Free: 800-044-3748

P T— Customner Service Fax: 814-387-6209 - Accounting Fax: 814-387-4698

November 20, 2015

Ms. Amina M. Williams

Trust Officer

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
1300 Merrill Lynch Drive

Mail Code NJ2-140-03-65
Pennington, NJ 08534

Re: Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Pension Plan for Hourly Employees

Ms. Willia_ms:

We are purchasing a $2,000,000 senior promissory note issued by American Investment Fund Il
This promissory note will have a fixed rate coupon of 8.00% with a 10-year maturity with quarterly
payments of principal and interest.

This private debt Investment conforms to the company's Plan Document and meets the company's
Investment policy guidelines. We have performed extensive due diligence on this Investment.

On November 20, 2015 please wire $2,000,000.00 from account [E_E_T;léﬁ:._ﬂm the following
instructions:

Recelving Bank: The Metropolitan Bank
201 Northlake Avenue, Suite 109
Ridgeland, MS 39157

Account Name: American Investment Fund 1l LLC
5101 Wheelis Drive Suite 200
Memphis, TiN 38217

Accountt  |[REDACTED]
Routing# BEDAQ_IE_:_!;—)_-‘
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Thank you for your assistance in this matter,
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Snow Shoe Refractories, L.ILC

gﬁ&%g(\gg 895 Clarence Road

. . ‘
Eﬁ’ﬁ@%@@g@m Clarence, PA 16829
BE m}W Phone: 814-387-6811 - Toll Free: 800-944-3748

Customer Service Fax: 814-387-6209 - Accounting Fax: 814-387-4698
www.frebricks.com-. =

UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT
IN LIEU OF A MEETING FOR
SNOW SHOE REFRACTORIES, LLC

~

The undersigned, being all of the Directors of Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC (the "Corporation”), acting by
unanimous written consent in fieu of a meeting, hereby consent to, approve, and adopt the following Resolutlons:

WHEREAS, the Corporation sponsors the Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Pension Plan for Hourly
Employees (the “Plan”); and

WHEREAS, Bank of Amerlca, N.A. ("BANA”} is currently the directed trustee for the assets of the Plan
and holds such assets In trust according to the terms of a Trust Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to divide the trust and assign all fiduciary and other responsibility for
a portion of the trust lo a successor trustee;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Corporation establishes a second trust for the Plan (the
"Second Trust'), and BANA is directed to divide and transfer a portion of the trust in the amount of $2,000,000.00
to the custodian account established under a Custodianship Agreement between the Gorporation and Trustee;
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, thal Mr. John S. Jumper is appointed as the trustee and named fiduciary
with respect to the Plan assets transferred from BANA to Metropolitan Bank (the "Transferred Assets”), o be
effective upon Mr. Jumper signing a written acknowledgment of his fiduciary status in the form attached to these
Resolutions, and a trust instrument with the Corporation to govern the Second Trust; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that BANA is relieved, discharged, and absolved of all responsibility and
liability with respect to the Transferred Assets and the Second Trust established herein; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation be, and each individually is, hereby
authorized to do and perform any and all such acts, including execution of any and all documents and certificates,
as said officers shall deem necessary or advisable, to carry out the purposes of the foregoing resolutions, and any
actions take by such officers prior to the date of the foregoing resolutions adopted hereby that are within the
authority conferred thereby are hereby ratlfied, confirmed, and approved as the acts and deeds of the Corporation.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, we have each signed this Unanimous Written Consent on the date(s) set forth
below zingthis Unanimous Written Consent shall become effective upon the latest date set forth below.

A 205 Band Gotiafol] 200
Dirbator IJ Dale Director ate.
(N3 < B

i~
Director Date Director Dale
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TRUSTEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

i, John 8. Jumper, do hereby accept appointment as trustee (within the meaning of Seclion 403(a) of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974; as amended, ("ERISA™)) of the Snow Shoe Refragtories, LLC
Pension Plan for Hourly Employees (the “Plan’, ), and acknowledge and agree that | am the successor trustee and

named fi iduclary” (within the meaning of ERISA Section 402(a)(2)) of the Plan with respect to Plan assels
X from Bank of America, N.A. o Metropolitan Bank on November 20, 2015.
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Certification of the Secretary

The undersigned, being the Secretary of the Corporation, hereby certifies that the foregoing Resolutions were duly
adopted: by the Corpomhon and that such Resolutions have not been modified or rescinded.

<
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R Q, e e MEBR o e - ¥ oY g
7 J Snow Shoe Refractories, LL{
g \&* 5“% i \,{3%2} 895 Clarence Road
?@?@%%@?ﬁﬁm Clarence, PA 16829
??' S )
sf ;@' Phone: B14-387-6811 - Toll Free: 800-944-37480
me.ﬁfebncls.com Customer Service Fax: 814-387-6200 . Accounting Fax: 814-387-46980

February 18, 2016

Ms. Amina M. Williams

Trust Officer

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
1300 Merrill Lynch Drive

Mail Code NJ2-140-03-65
Pennington, NJ 08534

Re: Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Pension Plan for Hourly Employees

Ms. Williams:

We are purchasing a $700,000.00 Senior Promissory Note issued by American Investment Fund H. This
promissory note will have a fixed rate coupon of 8.00% with a 10-year maturity with quarterly payments

of principal and interest.

This private debt investment conforms to the company’s Plan Document and meets the company’s
investment policy guidelines. We have performed extensive due di!igence on this investment. On
February 19, 2016 please wire $700,000.00 from accounu. & DA\J o lo the following instructions:

Wiring instructions:

Receiving Bank: The Metropolitan Bank
201 Northlake Avente, Suite 109
Ridgeland, M5 39157

Account Name: American Investment Fund i LLC
5101 Wheelis Drive, Suite 200
Memphis, TN 38117

Account
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S SNy

Routing#! REDACTED |

Thank you once again for your assistance in this matter..
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Snow Shoe Refractories, LIC

& é §§% ‘};%‘ff}“ 895 Clarence Road

Eﬁ@@ﬁ@@ggﬁm Clarence, PA 16829

% 53‘, 4 Phone: 814-387-6811 - Toll Free: 800-944-3748
ou : 5

Customer Service Fax: 814-387-6209 - Accounting Fax: 814-387-4698
www.firebricks.come

UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENg"
IN LIEU OF A MEETING FOR
SNOW SHOE REFRACTORIES, LLC

The undersigned, being all of the Directors of Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC (the "Corporation”), acting by
unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting, hereby consent to, approve, and adopt the following Resolutions:

WHEREAS, the Corporation sponsors the Snow Shoe Refractories, LLC Pension Plan for Hourly
Employees (the "Plan”); and

WHEREAS, Bank of America, N.A. ("BANA") is currently the directed trustee for the assets of the Plan
and holds such assets in trust according to the terms of a Trust Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to divide the trust and assign all fiduciary and other responsibility for
a portion of the trust to a successor trustee;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Corporation establishes a second trust for the Plan (the
“Second Trust®), and BANA is directed to divide and transfer a portion of the trust in the amount of $700,000.00 to
the custodian account established under a Custodianship Agreement between the Corporation and Trustee; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Mr. John S. Jumper Is appointed as the trustee and named flduciary
with respect to the Plan assets transferred from BANA to Metropolitan Bank (the “Transferred Assets"), to be
effective upon Mr. Jumper signing a written acknowledgment of his fiduciary status in the form altached to these
Resolutions, and a trust instrument with the Corporation to govemn the Second Trust; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that BANA is relieved, dlscharged, and absolved of all responslbility and
liability with respect to the Transferred Assets and the Second Trust established herein; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation be, and each individually is, hereby
authorized to do and perform any and all such acts, Including execution of any and all documents and cerllficates,
as sald officers shall deem necessary or advisable, to carry out the purposes of the foregoing resolutions, and any
actions take by such officers prior to the date of the foregoing resolutions adopted hereby that are within the
authority conferred thereby are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved as the acts and deeds of the Corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have each signed this Unanimous Written Consent on the date(s) set forth
betow and this Unanimous Written Consent shall become effec{ive upon thaylatest date set forth below.

Director

Director Date
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Certification of the Secretary
The undersigned, being the Secretary of the Corporation, hereby cerlifies that the foregoing Resolutions were duly
adopted by the Corporation and that such Resolutions have not been modified or rescinded.

Féebruary 18, 2016
DATE

TRUSTEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

l,elohn S. Jumper, do hereby accept appointment as trustee (within the meaning of Section 403(a) of thee
Employee Relirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended,. (‘ER!SA")) of the Snow Shoe Refraclories e
Penslon Plan for Hourly: Employees {the "Plan”), and acknowletge and agree that | am the successér trustes and
named ﬁduc:ar)f' (within the meaning of ERISA Section 402(a)(2)) of the Plan with respect to Plan assels
red;' fom Bank of America, N.A. to Metropolitan Bank on Febiuary 18, 2016.

L-18. L

T Date

¥ Rél{rgctories
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Confidential Treatment Requested by FINRA ) F00818

021 ' 8260 10f195
CONFIDENTIAL TREAMENT REQUESTED BY MLPFS UNDER FOIA MLPFS_FINRA_SSRPP_004776




Confidential Treatment Requested by FINRA F001009

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. Account Number:

8260 192 of 195
CONFIDENTIAL TREAMENT REQUESTED BY MLPFS UNDER FOIA MLPFS_FINRA_SSRPP_004967
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Confidential Treatment Requested by FINRA F001317

8260 Tof 168
CONFIDENTIAL TREAMENT REQUESTED BY MLPFS UNDER FOIA MLPFS_FINRA_SSRPP_005796




Confidential Treatment Requested by FINRA F001482

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. Account Number: NN

CONFIDENTIAL TREAMENT REQUESTED BY MLPFS UNDER FOIA MLPFS_FINRA_SSRPP_005961
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Confidential Treatment Requested by FINRA F001544

8260 1of182
CONFIDENTIAL TREAMENT REQUESTED BY MLPFS UNDER FOIA MLPFS_FINRA_SSRPP_006192




Confidential Treatment Requested by FINRA F001722

8260 1790f 182
CONFIDENTIAL TREAMENT REQUESTED BY MLPFS UNDER FOIA MLPFS_FINRA_SSRPP_006370






